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This Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of operations and financial statements presented
herein report on a continuity-of-interest accounting basis which recognizes the Trust as the successor to
AltaGas Services Inc.{ASI). This MD&A dated March 2, 2005 is a review of the results of operations and
the liguidity and capital resources of AltaGas Income Trust (AltaGas or the Trust) for the year ended
December 31, 2004 compared to 2003. It should be read in conjunction with the accompanying audited
consolidated financial statements of the Trust for the year ended December 31, 2004.

This MD&A contains forward-looking statements. When used in this MD&A the words “may”,
“would”, “could”, “will”, “intend”, “plan”, “anticipate”, “believe”, “seek”, “propose”, “estimate”,
“expect”, and similar expressions, as they relate to the Trust or an affiliate of the Trust, are intended to
identify forward-looking statements. These statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and
other factors that may cause actual results or events to differ materially from those anticipated in such
forward-looking statements. Such statements reflect the Trust’s current views with respect to future events
and are subject to certain risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Many factors could cause the Trust’s actual
results, performance or achievements to vary from those described in this MD&A. Should one or more of
these risks or uncertainties materialize, or should assumptions underlying forward-looking statements prove
incorrect, actual results may vary materially from those described in this MD&A as intended, planned,
anticipated, believed, estimated or expected, and such forward-looking statements included in this MD&A
herein should not be unduly relied upon. These statements speak only as of the date of this MD&A. The
Trust does not intend, and does not assume any obligation, to update these forward-looking statements.

Additional information relating to AltaGas Income Trust can be found on its website at www.altagas.ca.
The continuous disclosure materials of the Trust, filed as AltaGas Services Inc. prior to May 1, 2004,
including its annual MD&A and audited financial statements, Annual Information Form, Information
Circular and Proxy Statement, material change reports and press releases issued by the Trust are also
available through the Trust’s website or directly through the SEDAR system at www.sedar.com.

ALTAGAS INCOME TRUST

On April 29, 2004 the securityholders of ASI voted in favour of a plan of arrangement to reorganize the
business of ASI into an open-ended investment trust effective May 1, 2004. For each common share of ASI,
shareholders received either one unit of the Trust (trust unit) or one exchangeable unit of AltaGas Holding
Limited Partnership No.1 or AltaGas Holding Limited Partnership No.2 (trust units and exchangeable units
being collectively units). As a result of implementing the reorganization, the Trust now indirectly holds,
through its subsidiaries and partnerships all of the assets, liabilities and businesses formerly owned by ASI.
The material businesses are operated by AltaGas Lid., AlraGas Operating Partnership, AltaGas Limited
Partnership, AltaGas Power Holdings Partnership, AltaGas Pipeline Partnership and AltaGas Utilities Inc.
{collectively the operating subsidiaries). The cash flow of the Trust is solely dependent on the results of the
operating subsidiaries and is derived from interest earned on loans to the operating subsidiaries and from
dividends or returns of capital from equity interests held.

AltaGas General Partner Inc., through its Board of Directors, who are elected by the Trust at the
direction of the holders of the units, manages or supervises the management of the business and affairs of
the Trust. AlraGas Ltd. provides all the management, administrative and operating services to the Trust and
its subsidiaries. At December 31, 2004 AltaGas Ltd. and its subsidiaries employed a total of 588 people.

ALTAGAS INCOME TRUST




The Trust has incurred costs and charges to implement the plan of arrangement, which are anticipated
to total approximately $17.0 million. Total amounts incurred in 2004 of $8.6 million and $5.7 million have
been charged to unitholders’ capital and income respectively. The balance is expected to be charged to

income in future periods.

DISTRIBUTIONS

AltaGas’ distributions are determined by giving consideration to the ongoing sustainable distributable cash
flow as impacted by the consolidated net income, maintenance and growth capital requirements and the debt
repayment requirements of the Trust. The Trust targets to pay out substantially all of its ongoing sustainable

distributable cash flow through regular monthly distributions made to unitholders.

On April 29, 2004 the Trust announced it would commence monthly distributions of $0.15 for each
trust unit and exchangeable unit on June 15, 2004 to holders of units. AltaGas pays cash distributions on
the 15th day of each month to unitholders of record on the 25th day of the previous month, or in each case
the following business day if the payment date falls on 2 weekend or holiday.

From the date of conversion to an income trust on May 1, 2004, through to December 31, 2004,
AltaGas declared cash distributions of $61.7 million or $1.20 per unit. The following table summarizes
AltaGas’ dividend and distribution declaration history for the last three years.("/

[$ per unit) 2004 2003 2002
First quarter $ 0.11 $ 0.08 § 0.06
Second guarter 0.30 0.08 0.06
Third quarter 0.45 0.11 0.08
Fourth guarter 0.45 0.11 0.08

$ 1.31 s 0.38 $ 0.28

(1) Dividends were paid to shareholders from first quarter 2001 through first quarter 2004. Prior to December 2000 no dividends
were paid, Monthly distributions to unitholders began in the second quarter of 2004.

On May 20, 2004 AltaGas adopted Premium Distribution™, Distribution Reinvestment and Optional
Unit Purchase plans (DRIP) for eligible holders of trust units and exchangeable units of AltaGas Income
Trust, AltaGas Holding Limited Partnership No. 1 and AltaGas Holding Limited Partnership No. 2. DRIP
participation generated $10.3 million in new equity through the issuance of 521,326 trust units in 2004,
Complete details on DRIP are available on the AltaGas website at www.altagas.ca.

For income tax purposes approximately 75 percent of the distributions declared in 2004 will be taxed
as interest with the remaining 25 percent classified as return of capital. For most unitholders, the return of
capital amount will reduce the cost base of their trust units for purposes of calculating the capital gains
amount upon disposition of their trust units. Unitholders should seek independent tax advice in respect of
the consequences to them of acquiring, holding and disposing of trust unirts.
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OVERVIEW OF THE BUSINESS AND STRATERY

AltaGas Income Trust is in the business of moving energy from its source to the end-user. The Trust’s
objective is to generate long-term value for investors through disciplined investment that links energy
infrastructure and energy services along the energy value chain. AltaGas’ businesses are organized into three
segments - Gathering and Processing, Energy Services and Natural Gas Distribution. Within each segment,
management focuses on operating components. Gathering and Processing includes natural gas field gathering
and processing facilities, ethane and natural gas liquids extraction plant interests and natural gas
transmission pipelines. Energy Services primarily includes power services and gas services. Natural Gas
Distribution includes AltaGas Utilities Inc. a wholly owned subsidiary, a one-third interest in Inuvik Gas
Ltd., and AltaGas’ 24.9 percent ownership interest in Heritage Gas Ltd.

The Trust expects to continue to grow its integrated energy businesses through internal expansion and
through acquisition opportunities, deliberately growing each of its business components to reduce
concentrations of risk and enhance earnings potential. In the period from 2000 through 2004, AltaGas
invested $586.7 million, approximately 35 percent or $208.2 million was expended on internal development
projects to meet customer demand, and 65 percent or $378.5 million was expended to acquire various

midstream assets and businesses.

CONGOLIDATED FINANCIAL RESULTS

{$ millions) 2004 2003 zonaii
Revenue 859.2 710.6 492.7
Net revenue %/ 249.8 2199 169.9
EBITDA (2 133.4 121.9 94.8
Net incame 65.8 38.3 294
Total assets 1,108.6 919.3 904.9
Longterm liabilities 323.7 468.9 431.2
Net additions to capital assets 101.6 526 163.0
Cash flows

Funds generated from operations (%) 108.6 90.2 70.8

Distributable cash fiow %/ 102.2 79.6 66.1

Distributions/dividends 3/ 66.7 17.3 11.9

{$ per unit, basic)

EBITDA 2.70 2.68 2.24
Net income 1.33 (.84 0.70
Cash flows
Funds generated from operations (% 2.20 1.98 1.67
Distributable cash 2/ 207 175 1.56
Distributions/dividends (3 1.31 0.38 0.28
Units outstanding (millions)
Basic 49.4 45.5 42.3
End of period 532 45.7 45.2

(1) Restated for the impacts of the adoption of asset retirement obligation accounting

2) Non-GAAP financial measure. See discussion in the following section of this MD&A

(3) Distributions of $o.15 per unit declared commencing May, 2004. Dividends of $0.06-80.11/share paid in quarters dated prior to
trust conversion
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AltaGas’ net income for 2004 increased 72 percent compared to 2003, establishing a new record since
AltaGas’ formation. Net income for the year ended December 31, 2004 was $65.8 million or $1.33 per unit
compared to $38.3 million or $0.84 per unit for the year ended December 31, 2003. Acquisitions and
expansions in AltaGas’ Energy Services and Gathering and Processing segments contributed to the
improvement in operating results, In addition, reduced income tax expense in the current year associated
with converting to an income trust had a significant favourable impact on net income. One-time costs related
to the conversion to an income trust and costs associated with regularly scheduled major maintenance

turnarounds at two of AltaGas’ sour gas processing facilities partially offset the increases.
gas p g P y

On a consolidated basis, revenue for the year ended December 31, 2004 increased 21 percent to $859.2
million compared to $710.6 million for the same period in 2003. The increase in revenue was primarily due
to volume increases related to the acquisitions in the gas services and extraction components. Also
contributing to the increase were higher natural gas liquids (NGLs) prices and higher average prices received
in the power component on hedged power volumes sold.

Net revenue increased 14 percent to $249.8 million for full year 2004 when compared to 2003. In the
extraction component and the Natural Gas Distribution and Energy Services segments, net revenue better
reflects performance than does revenue, as changes in the market price of natural gas and power affect both
revenue and the cost of goods sold.

Operating and administrative expense was $18.4 million or 19 percent higher in 2004 than 2003,
Operating costs increased primarily due to field gathering and processing facilities acquisitions late in 2003
as well as the completion of major maintenance turnarounds at AltaGas’ Bantry and Rainbow Lake facilities
during 2004. Cash costs of $3.3 million related to the conversion to an income trust, and a further non-cash
charge of $2.4 million in compensation expense as a result of the vesting of all outstanding unvested
employee trust unit options on May 1, 2004 were the major drivers of increased administrative expense.
Increased staffing required to support the Trust’s growth also contributed to higher administrative costs.

Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) for 2004 rose nine percent to
$133.4 million compared to 2003. Amortization expense increased nine percent to $41.8 million for 2004
compared to $38.3 million for 2003. The increase in amortization expense was driven by increases in

AltaGas’ capital base related to acquisitions and internal expansion projects.
P q P proj

Consolidated Net Income (s miliions) Consolidated Revenue (s mittions)

oo [o4] 02 o3 04
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Interest expense of $21.2 million for 2004 was four percent lower than 2003 due to lower average debt
balances during the year, partially offset by higher blended average interest rates. Income tax expense for
2004 was $18.6 million less than that reported for 2003 even though income before taxes was higher. The
variance was driven by AltaGas’ conversion to an income trust. AltaGas’ consolidated income from
corporations was taxable in 2003 and for the period January 1 through April 30, 2004. Once restructured
as an income trust, corporate subsidiaries’ taxable income is generally reduced to zero by interest payments
to the Trust. Payments received by the Trust in the form of interest distributions or other income from its
subsidiaries are taxable income to the Trust. As the Trust is entitled to deduct its administrative costs and
distributions to unitholders and since in accordance with its Trust indenture it distributes all of its income to
unitholders, the Trust is not expected to be liable for income taxes either currently or in the foreseeable
future. The impact of the restructuring from a corporation to a trust contributed $15.5 million of the
reduction in income tax expense for 2004.

As a result of AltaGas’ conversion to an income trust, and consequently interest expense reducing
taxable income, amortization expense now exceeds capital cost allowance claimed, resulting in a reversal
over time of the Trust’s future income tax liability. AltaGas’ first eight months as a trust resulted in the
reversal driving a credit to income tax expense of $3.1 million.

The income of AltaGas’ operating entities is subject to a variety of tax rates and rate reductions,

. currently and in the future. Consequently, there are several items which impact income tax expense and the
effective tax rate from period to period. Contributing to the variance from 2004 to 2003 in the effective tax

rate was a $0.7 million charge in the second quarter of 2003 to the future income tax liability to record the

impact of federal rate and resource allowance adjustments. Income tax expense for 2004 was reduced by

$0.7 million as a result of the application of a provincial rate reduction arising out of the March 19, 2004

Alberta government budget. The impact of recording a charge to income for compensation expense related

to stock options in 2004, which has no current or future income tax implication, partially offset these rate

reductions by $0.8 million.

The Trust will continue to pay Large Corporations Tax for all of its subsidiaries until it is phased out
after 2007. Incorporated subsidiaries in AltaGas’ Natural Gas Distribution segment which operate as
regulated businesses under utility board regulation will continue to pay income tax.

Consolidated Net Revenue (s mitions) Net Income Per Unit (g/basic upin)

i
o1 02 03 04

24 ALTAGAS INCOME TRUST




NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES

AltaGas provides financial measures in this MD&A that do not have a standardized meaning prescribed by
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). These non-GAAP financial measures may not be
comparable to similar measures presented by other trusts.

The purpose of these financial measures and their reconciliation to GAAP financial measures is shown
below, All of the measures have been calculated consistent with previous disclosures by AltaGas.

FUNDS GENERATED FROM DPERATIONS

($ mitions) 2004 2003 @O0
Funds generated from operations 108.6 90.2 70.8
Add: Net change in noncash working capital and other 391 6.3 4.4
Cash from operations (GAAP financial measure) 147.7 96.5 752

Funds generated from operations is provided to assist in determining the ability of AltaGas to generate
cash from operations, after interest and taxes, without regard to changes in the Trust’s non-cash working
capital in the period.

EBITOA

[$ millions) 2004 2003 2002

EBITDA 133.4 121.9 94.8

Deduct: Amortization (41.8) (38.3) {33.8)
Interest (21.2) (22,11 {18.1)
Incorme taxes (4.6) {23.2) {13.5)

Net income (GAAP financial measure) 65.8 383 29.4

Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) is provided to assist in
understanding the ability of the organization to generate cash and its ability to cover interest payments.

Funds Generated From Operations Consolidated EBITDA ¢ mitions)

($ millions)
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DOFPERATING INCOME

1$ milions) 2004 2002
Operating income 91.6 61.0
Deduct: Interest (21.2) (18.1)
Income taxes (4.6) (13.5)
Net income (GAAP financial measure) 65.8 294

AltaGas reports segmented operating income in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

since interest and income taxes are not allocated to business segments. Operating income is used to measure

operating performance without reference to financing decisions and income tax impacts which are not

controlled at the operating management level.

DISTRIBUTABLE CASH FLOW

(3 millions except per unit information) 2004 2003 2002
Distributable cash flow 102.2 79.6 66.1
Add: Maintenance capital expenditures 6.4 10.6 4.7

Net change in noncash working capital 39.1 6.3 4.4
Cash from operations (GAAP financial measure) 147.7 96.5 75.2
Distributable cash flow per unit $207 $1.75 $1.56

The Trust’s distributable cash flow is equal to consolidated funds generated from operations before

changes in non-cash working capital, after providing for maintenance capital expenditures. Distributable

cash flow is not a defined performarnce measure under GAAP and distributable cash flow can not be assured.

The Trust’s calculation of distributable cash flow may differ from similar calculations used by comparable

entities. Distributable cash flow is a main performance measure used by management and investors to

evaluate the performance of the Trust and its operating subsidiaries.

Revenue by Segment (s miliions)

00 01 02 a3 o4

Energy Servicas

Naturs! Gas Distribution

Gathering and Procassing

Gathering, Processing and Energy Services

Excludes tntersegment Efiminations

Prior to January 1, 2002 the Trust bad two
business segements
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Net Revenue by Segment (s miltions)
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Natura! Gas Distribution
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NET REVENUE

($ millicns) 2004 2003 2008
Net revenue 249.8 2199 169.9
Add cost of sales 609.4 490.7 3228
Revenue [GAAP financial measure) 859.2 710.6 492.7

In the Natural Gas Distribution and Energy Services segments, net revenue better reflects performance

than does revenue, as changes in the market price of natural gas and power purchased for resale affect both

revenue and the cost of sales, net revenue better reflects organic growth in the business.

RESULTS OF ORERATIONS BY SEGMENT

The Trust reports consolidated financial and operating results to the operating income level on the basis of

three business segments: Gathering and Processing, Energy Services and Natural Gas Distribution.

OPERATING INCOME

(3 millions) 2004 200 acuei
Gathering and Processing 45.4 423 28.2
Energy Services 383 32.6 24.0
Natural Gas Distribution 7.9 8.7 8.8
91.6 83.6 61.0

(1) Restated for certain NGLs operations previously reported in Energy Services now managed and reported in Gatbering

and Processing
12} Restated for the impacts of asset retirement obligation accounting

GATHERING AND PRDUESSING

The Gathering and Processing segment includes the field gathering and processing, extraction, and

transmission components, as well as AltaGas’ investments in businesses ancillary to the gathering and

processing business.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

(S millions) 2004 2003 2!
Revenue 218.9 169.2 106.1
Net revenue 164.9 140.4 99.6
Operating and administrative expense 93.3 74.5 52.2
Amortization expense 26.2 23.6 192
Operating income 45.4 42.3 282

(1) Restated for certain NGLs operations previously reported in Energy Services and now managed and reported in Gathering

and Processing

(2} Restated for the impacts of asset retirement obligation accounting
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OPERATING STATISTICS

2004 2003 2002
Field gathering and processing
Capacity {Mmcf/d] () 913 861 342
Throughput (gross Mmcf/d) & 558 323 532
Throughput (gross average annual Mmef/d) 3/ 560 520 492
Capacity utilization [percent) V) 61 61 63
Average working interest (percent) %/ 90 90 83
Extraction
Inlet capacity (Mmcf/d) ) 539 349 349
Production {Bbls/d) (3/ 13,436 7575 3,399
Transmission volumes (Mmcf/d) 2/ 432 403 106

(1} As at December 31

(2} Fourth quarter average

3 Average for period

(4) Excludes condensate pipeline volumes

Business activities

The Gathering and Processing segment consists of the field gathering and processing, extraction and
transmission businesses. The assets in this segment include 69 natural gas field gathering and processing
plants, more than 6,000 kilometres of gathering lines, interests in five ethane and NGLs extraction and
fractionation facilities and six natural gas transmission lines. AltaGas’ natural gas processing capacity ranks
the Trust in the top ten Canadian processors of natural gas and one of the four largest Canadian midstream
processors. These long-life assets provide service to a diverse customer base under arrangements which
include a significant portion of contracts that provide cost of service, fixed fee and recovery of operating cost

terms,

Revenues are generally volume driven and commodity price exposure is minimal. The main drivers of
performance in this segment are processed volumes for the field gathering and processing and extraction
components and transported volumes for the transmission component and fees earned per unit processed or
transported. On the small portion of the extraction business that is not under fixed fee sales or cost of service
contracts, performance can be subject to the price spread between NGLs extracted and the natural gas
purchased to make up the heating value of the NGLs extracted after subtracting operating costs (frac
spread).

In the field gathering and processing component, contracts with natural gas producers are volumetric
service fee structures, based on a rate per mef of throughput. Approximately 73 percent of contracts in place
at December 31, 2004 were subject to annual price escalation related to changes in the Alberta Consumer
Price Index. This “toll for service” structure does not create exposure to commodity price risk as revenues
are a function of volumes processed.

ALTAGAS INCOME TRUST




In the extraction component, AltaGas’ net share of ethane production is sold through long-term cost of
service or fixed fee arrangements. The sales price received under these contracts provides for a return on and
of capital and the recovery of certain operating costs, including shrinkage make-up attributable to that
production. AltaGas’ share of ethane production is sold at the plant gate, with the product purchaser
responsible for all downstream transportation and handling.

AltaGas’ NGLs can be sold under a variety of arrangements, but approximately 75 percent of AltaGas’
net NGLs production is sold under long term fixed fee arrangements. These volumes do not bear any
commodity price risk. The revenue from these NGLs sales and the ethane sales provides a stable, predictable
cash flow base.

Approximately 20 percent of AltaGas’ NGLs production is sold under short term contracts. The
margins received on these volumes are subject to frac spread. The remaining five percent of NGLs production
is sold under a profit and loss arrangement. If commodity prices or operating costs make NGLs extraction
uneconomic, the NGLs may be reinjected or the facilities may be turned down or shut in.

In the transmission component the Suffield system which consists of two natural gas pipelines at
Suffield, Alberta, is the largest contributor to component revenues. The two pipelines each have 200 Mmcf/d
of transmission capacity. The majority of the Suffield system’s capacity is contracted through transport or
pay and volume commitments which expire in 2022 and are renewable for one year periods thereafter.
Volume commitments will increase annually from approximately 322 Mmcf/d in 2004 to approximately 385
Mmcf/d in 2010 and decline thereafter. AltaGas expects to work with other potential shippers to develop
transportation opportunities to maximize the system’s contribution.

Results of operations

Revenue in the Gathering and Processing segment for 2004 increased to $218.9 million or 29 percent from
2003. Net revenue increased by 17 percent to $164.9 million compared to $140.4 million for 2003. The
increases were driven by higher throughput volumes in the field gathering and processing and extraction
components due to acquisitions and expansions and by an increase in shipper transported volumes in the
transmission component. A record number of well tie-ins in 2004 also helped maintain throughput levels in
the field gathering and processing component. Favourable frac spreads through the latter half of the year

contributed to increased net revenues in the extraction component.

Operating and administrative expenses increased 24 percent in 2004 compared to 2003 due to
incremental operating costs related to facility acquisitions and major maintenance turnarounds at two of
AltaGas’ major processing facilities. Efficient turnaround work is important to AltaGas, as well as its

customers, to minimize downtime and the associated period of lost revenue.

In the field gathering and processing component, capacity increased to 913 Mmcf/d at end of 2004
compared to 861 Mmcf/d at the end of 2003. Capacity in the field gathering and processing increased due
to the acquisition of the 43 Mmcf/d Mica Pouce Coupe gas plant and gathering system in the first quarter
2004 and the seven Mmcf/d expansion of the Kirkpatrick Lake facility in December 2004. Throughput
volumes increased to 560 Mmcf/d from 520 Mmcf/d in 2003. Throughput volumes were higher in 2004 due
to the combined impact of the late 2003 Rainbow Lake plant acquisition, well tie-ins and plant expansions
which more than offset the impact of normal natural gas production declines and maintenance turnarounds.
In 2004, 428 wells were tied-in to AltaGas’ facilities compared to 324 in 2003 generating the need to expand
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throughput at AltaGas’ Marten Creek, Doris and Windfall facilities with the addition of booster
compression. During 2004, AltaGas invested approximately $16.4 million on internal expansion projects in
the field gathering and processing component. In addition, 36 movable processing components were
relocated, contributing further to the increases in throughput. While AltaGas’ investment is generally
protected by the life of reserves behind the facility, since producing wells typically remain connected to a
gathering and processing system for their entire productive lives, these projects are often supported by
producer commitments designed to underpin AltaGas’ capital commitments. The fees generated by these
projects and the renegotiation of existing processing contracts have increased the average fee earned per mcf
processed when comparing 2004 to 2003.

During the first quarter of 2004 AltaGas also captured an opportunity to increase its ownership in the
25 Mmcf/d Namaka facility to 100 percent from 75 percent allowing AltaGas to benefit from more of the
processing upside expected to develop in the area.

On a full-year basis average NGLs volumes processed increased to 13,436 Bbls/d compared to 7,575
Bbls/d in 2003, Volume increases for the year were primarily due to the late August 2004 closing of AltaGas’
acquisition of an interest in EEEP. The plant has gross licensed inlet capacity of 390 Mmcf/d of natural gas
and gross natural gas liquids production of approximately 15,000 Bbls/d of specification ethane and 6,000
Bbls/d of NGLs. The acquisition increased AltaGas’ total net licensed inlet extraction capacity to 539
Mmcf/d. AltaGas’ share of plant products are sold under long-term contracts and feedstock supply is
provided by a long-term gas supply contract to EEEP. Production at the Empress EnCana facility and the
Joffre ethane extraction plant were also higher during the year.

The volume increases, combined with a favourable NGLs pricing environment, resulted in extraction
net revenue growth of 89 percent reaching $20.9 million during 2004 compared to $11.1 million in 2003.

AltaGas’ transmission component net revenue was up $0.4 million in 2004 compared to 2003. Volumes
increased due to well tie-ins and increased shipper volumes on the Suffield system.

Business strategy
Fundamental opportunities in the gathering and processing business derive from the requirement for all
natural gas to be processed to meet downstream pipeline specifications prior to delivery to the end-user.

In the field gathering and processing component facility utilization can often be increased with little or
no additional capital investment. Facility utilization in the field gathering and processing component
averaged 61 percent at December 31, 2004, With its extensive gathering infrastructure and the mobile nature
of the majority of its field gathering and processing plants, AltaGas has a unique ability to quickly redeploy
assets in response to producer drilling activity, and to size facilities to meet demand while reducing operating
costs and minimizing the time required to bring new production on line, improving producer and AltaGas’
cash flow. AltaGas’ operating areas have investment opportunities which will be realized should economic
and resource conditions warrant. During the third quarter of 2004 AltaGas announced the construction of
a $5.5 million sour gas processing plant and approximately 37 kilometres of pipeline near the town of
Shaunavon, Saskatchewan, The Shaunavon plant became operational in February 2005 and will process 1.0
Mmcf/d per day of solution gas currently being flared from two oil batteries. AltaGas is pursuing additional
opportunities in Saskatchewan to process flared gas.

ALTAGAS INCOME TRUST




In the extraction component opportunities arise from organic growth and the pursuit of additional
acquisition opportunities. In 2005 the impact of a full year of operations of EEEP under AltaGas’ ownership
is expected to boost 2005 NGLs production to new records. In addition, AltaGas expects to invest
approximately $5.1 million in its extraction component during 2005 to increase efficiency and undertake
other natural gas value chain optimization. Opportunities to purchase additional interests in facilities in
which the Trust currently owns interests, or in facilities new to AltaGas, will be evaluated and pursued within
the Trust’s framework of economically sound decision making.

In the transmission component acquisition opportunities are available and organic growth can be
captured through the leverage of existing facilities.

Business risks

The majority of AltaGas’ gathering and processing facilities process or transport natural gas from the
Western Canadian Sedimentary Basin. The ongoing capacity utilization of these systems is dependent on a
number of factors including the level of exploration and development within the basin, the longer term price
of natural gas, the ability of natural gas producers to deliver natural gas to the various pipeline systems and

the regulatory environment for producers, transporters and consumers of natural gas.

Throughput at AltaGas’ field gathering and processing facilities is influenced by production of natural
gas in the areas serviced by AltaGas. At its field gathering and processing facilities, AltaGas actively pursues
opportunities to maintain or increase throughput and has been successful in offsetring natural production
declines. AltaGas’ contract provisions further mitigate the impact of volume declines, generate additional
volumes for gathering and processing at its facilities, encourage expansion into areas where AltaGas’
facilities are located and allow AltaGas to recover portions of its expansion capital over a relatively short
period of time. The majority of AltaGas’ field processing facilities are skid-mounted and can be moved to
areas with favourable production potential should a particular area’s production decline significantly.

AltaGas’ extraction business depends in part on the level of demand for and the pricing of NGLs.
AltaGas cannot predict the impact of future economic conditions, fuel conservation measures, alternative
fuel requirements, governmental regulation or technological advances in fuel economy and energy generation
devices, all of which could reduce the demand for natural gas and NGLs. Because NGLs are a feedstock to
the petrochemical industry, there is a historical relationship between NGLs prices and crude oil prices. As
crude oil prices fall, NGLs prices will generally decrease subject to other factors that influence the supply and
demand.

AltaGas’ gathering and processing businesses are subject to regulation in the jurisdictions in which they
carry on business. Pipelines and field gathering and processing facilities can be subject to common carrier
and common processor applications and to rate setting by the regulatory authorities in the event an
agreement on fees or tariffs cannot be reached with producers. To the extent that producers believe
processing fees or tariffs respecting pipelines and facilities are too high, they may seek relief through
regulator intervention. AltaGas’ operated facilities have not faced this situation.
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ENERGY SERVICES
The Energy Services segment is comprised of the power services, gas services and the oil and gas production
components.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

[$ millions) 2004 ano3f 2002
Revenue 630.4 510.8 335.9
Net revenue () 59.9 49.3 442
Operating income (% 38.3 32.6 240

1) Gross revenue less cost of sales

(2} Gross revenue less costs of sales less operating and general and administration expense and amortization

(3} Restated for certain NGLs operations previously managed and reported in Energy Services now reported in Gathering
and Processing

DPERATING STATISTICS

2004 20013 2000

Volume of power sold (thousands of MWh) 3,481 3,266 2,669

Price received on the sale of power [$/MwWh) (¢/ 48.77 47.36 41.27

.; Alberta power pool spot price ($/Mwh) (¥ 54.54 62.98 43.45

1) Average for the year

Business activities

The Energy Services segment includes the provision of electricity to the Alberta wholesale market, the
procurement and supply of energy to end-user customers across Canada and the production of oil and gas.
The portfolio of assets in this segment includes coal generation capacity through long-term power purchase
agreements (PPAs), a gas fired peaking power complex through a long-term lease and an energy agency
business marketed under AltaGas, PremStar and ECNG trade names. Also included is a small portfolio of
oil and natural gas reserves acquired over time in association with various asset acquisitions that have been
retained as underpinning to certain gas services contracts.

The main drivers of performance for the power services component are megawatt hours (MWh) of
power sold, forward sales prices and the Alberta power pool prices on volumes sold on the spot market. Gas
services component performance drivers are volumes marketed and exchanged on behalf of customers and

the fees earned for the service provided.

AltaGas’ power portfolio at the end of 2004 was 478 megawatts (MW) of power generation capacity
representing approximately six percent of the Alberta power capacity. The Sundance B power purchase
arrangements provide 353 MW of power generation capacity at two plants in Alberta until December 31,
2020. The 36 month Genesee energy contract, entered into April 1, 2003, provides a further 100 MW at an
additional two plants. On September 1, 2004 AltaGas entered into a ten year capital lease with Maxim
Energy Group Ltd. for 25 MW of capacity, generated by four gas fired peaking plants, located in southern
Alberta. The capital lease requires AltaGas to pay monthly variable operating and maintenance charges plus

a capacity fee, AltaGas retains all of the ancillary service and peaking sales revenues.

32 ALTAGAS INCOME TRUST




The addition of the 25 MW of natural gas generation peaking capacity provides fuel diversity to
AltaGas’ coal fired generation. It adds a fifth independent supply source to the Trust’s portfolio. The gas fired
peaking power assets can ramp up quickly, providing a degree of operational backstopping to AltaGas’
Sundance B PPAs and the Genesee energy contract. The peaking gas supply requirement is managed by

AltaGas’ gas services component.

Since 1994, AltaGas has marketed natural gas processed through its field gathering and processing,
transmission and extraction facilities and gas supplied by a pool of producers. On October 6, 2004 AltaGas
significantly expanded this component with the acquisition of substantially all of the assets, including the
company names, and liabilities of PremStar Energy Canada Ltd. and its subsidiaries ECNG Inc. and
Energistics Group Inc. (collectively PremStar). The purchase price of $20.5 million net of acquisition costs,
after closing adjustments from the effective date of April 1, 2004, was paid primarily by way of the issuance
of 993,789 trust units from treasury. PremStar is one of Canada’s leading energy agency businesses,
which on a fee for service basis, provides energy supply, arranges for transportation services, and
supports customers with valuable market information. There is minimal capital required to operate the gas
services business.

Results of operations
Revenue in the Energy Services segment increased 23 percent to $630.4 million in 2004 from $510.8 million
in 2003, The increase was primarily driven by higher power sales volumes.

The power services component generated net revenue of $47.9 million for the full year of 2004
compared to $41.0 million for the same period in 2003. Increases for 2004 were due to higher volumes sold
due to the full year contribution from the Genesee energy contract entered into on April 1, 2003 and the
addition of the Alberta peaking plants and higher realized prices on power sales. The Alberta Electric System
Operator {AESO) is entitled quarterly to recover or refund variances between the revenues collected through
transmission charges and the expenses incurred by them. For 2004, the cumulative quarterly adjustments
have resulted in a net credit to AltaGas’ operating income of $0.9 million compared to a credit of $3.6
million for 2003,

The gas services component contributed net revenue of $5.3 million for the full year 2004 compared to
$0.7 in 2003. The PremStar acquisition at the beginning of the fourth quarter of 2004 was the main driver
for the growth contributing $3.8 million.

Partially offsetting the increase in net revenue was a significant increase in administrative costs in the
segment. This is largely due to PremStar, which, as an energy marketing and agency businesses, is a people
based business and carries a relatively high proportion of administrative expense, which tempers its net
revenues impact on operating income. The increase in amortization expense, in this segment for 2004
compared to 2003 is due to the amortization of the PremStar contracts and relationships purchased.

Net additions to capital assets in the Energy Services segment were $15.1 million during 2004 compared
to $2.5 million during 2003. The addition of the peaking plants was the primary driver of the year over

year increase.
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Business strategy

The Sundance B PPAs provide AltaGas with a profitable low cost coal-based generation position in the
Alberta power market where power pricing is driven by the natural gas fuel cost of plants that provide peak
loads. This natural gas link of power to the gathering and processing and gas services businesses means that
as natural gas becomes more expensive, AltaGas’ coal fired power will receive higher prices. Since 2001,
AltaGas has diversified its power portfolio and optimized its original investment by mitigating the
operational risks inherent in owning rights to only two generating units. In 2003 the Genessee energy
contract provided AltaGas with more diversity of power supply from the two additional units, and the
Alberta peaking plants leased in 2004 provide further insurance for operational outages. The peaking plants
also allow the Trust to quickly capture attractive peak load power pricing.

AltaGas will continue to invest in power opportunities to optimize its existing power investments. The
Trust will pursue additional PPAs and other assets that are supported by long-term power arrangements.
AltaGas will not invest in plants that are solely merchant risk, but will look for gas fired, renewable or
hydro-power assets with contractual underpinning, with a view to augmenting its existing volumes, reducing
operating risk and capturing peak prices in a low risk manner. Underlying these goals is an intent to provide
additional related business for the gas services component and to build on the Trust’s expertise in operating
natural gas-fired equipment,

The business strategy for PremStar’s energy supply and consulting services is focused on end-users in the
commercial, industrial and institutional sectors in Ontario. It builds on PremStar’s long-term relationships,
responsive customer service and efficient back-office systems. Expertise in gas markets and innovative
contracting arrangements enable PremStar to create value and lock in margins. The PremStar acquisition is
expected to increase 2005 and subsequent year’s gas services component’s results, By offering natural gas
marketing services to customers moving product through AltaGas’ western Canadian gathering and
processing and natural gas distribution assets, the gas services component is a link in the AlraGas strategy of
value chain optimization. The access to end-user demand through PremStar is expected to bring more
volumes through AltaGas’ extraction plants, improving margins in both components,

Business risks

AltaGas’ revenue from power sales are subject to Alberta electricity market factors such as fluctuating supply
and demand, which may be affected by weather, customer usage, economic activity and growth. Each of
these may have an impact on the prices the Trust receives for the power sold, which in turn can create
volatility in earnings. AltaGas reduces its exposure to floating electricity prices by supplying internal
electrical demand requirements and by using a balanced portfolio of forward sales contracts to lock in power
margins to reduce pricing risk. Contracts are of terms and at prices dictated by market liquidity and other
conditions. For 2005, contracts are in place for periods ranging from three months to 18 months in duration.
AltaGas’ peaking generation is activated to meet peak power demand or when power is required to offset
operating risk at AltaGas PPA plants.

AltaGas does not engage in the speculative trading of power. The Trust actively manages its acquired
power capacity to provide stable, predictable earnings and cash flow. The average price AltaGas received
from power sales for the 12 months of 2004 was $48.77 per MWh compared to $47.56 per MWh for the
same period in 2003. Average Alberta Power Pool spot prices were $54.54 per MWh and $62.98 per MWh
for 2004 and 2003 respectively.
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AltaGas does not take on commodity price risk in connection with gas services activities and has
implemented rigorous risk management processes and systems to carefully monitor and manage its gas
services business. Included in these are policies and procedures to manage counterparty credit risk.

NATURAL GAS DISTRIBUTION
The Natural Gas Distribution segment includes AltaGas Utilities Inc., AltaGas’ one-third interest in Inuvik
Gas Ltd. and its 24.9 percent interest in Heritage Gas Limited.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

(8 millions) 2004 PO B0
Revenue 124.6 129.4 94.3
Net revenue (*/ 30.7 30.6 28.9
Operating income (2/ 7.9 8.7 8.8

(1) Gross revenue less cost of sales
(2) Gross revenue less costs of sales less operating and general and administration expense and amortization

OPERATING STATISTICS (0

2004 2003 20012
Volume of natural gas distributed
Sales (Bcf) 13.6 13.8 14.2
Transportation (Bcf) 11.0 9.7 7.6
Degree day variance (percent) 2/ 2.6 6.9 7.
Number of customers (3/ 60,430 39,543 58,499

(1) AUI only
(2) Variance from 20 year average. Positive variances are favourable
3) At December 31

Business activities

AltaGas Utilities Inc. (AUI), which services 90 communities in Alberta, celebrated 50 years of service as a
provincially regulated natural gas distribution utility in 2004, lnuvik Gas Ltd. (Inuvik Gas) distributes gas
to the town of Inuvik in the Northwest Territories. Heritage Gas Limited (Heritage) has distribution
franchises to deliver natural gas to six counties in Nova Scotia and delivered gas off its Dartmouth system
to its first customer in late 2003.

AUI and Herirage Gas are provincially regulated as to natural gas rates and terms and conditions of
service. Customer rates are based on anticipated sales as well as the revenue required to recover estimated
costs of service and an allowed return on rate base. Rate base generally consists of the aggregate of the
utility’s approved investment in plant, property and equipment in service less accumulated depreciation plus
an allowance for working capital. Return on rate base is comprised of regulatory allowed financing costs and

return on COMMON equity.

The natural gas distribution business is highly seasonal with the majority of natural gas deliveries
occurring during the winter heating season. Gas sales during the winter typically account for approximately
two-thirds of annual distribution net revenue, resulting in strong first and fourth quarter results and second

and third quarter results that show either small profits or losses.
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The main drivers of performance in the Natural Gas Distribution segment are the allowed regulatory
returns on equity and weather in the AUI franchise areas. The segment performance is expected to be
impacted in future years by growth within the Heritage Gas franchise areas. Inuvik Gas is small, and while
profitable, segment results are not materially impacted by changes in its operating performance.

In July 2004, the Alberta Energy and Utilities Board {AEUB) issued its Generic Cost of Capital decision
confirming a capital structure at 41 percent equity and 59 percent debt and establishing the 2004 rate of
return on common equity for AUI at 9.6 percent. A formula was approved which establishes the rate of
return on common equity at 9.5 percent for 2005. In August 2004, the AEUB confirmed the AUI revenue
requirements negotiated for 2003 and 2004. AUI filed an application to allocate costs of service to rate
classes and the hearing on resulting rate design concluded on January 14, 2005. A decision is expected early
in the second quarter of 2005. AULI filed a General Rate Application for 2005 and 2006 in the fourth quarter
of 2004, and expects a hearing in mid 2003.

AUI continues to make moderate increases in the customer base in its franchise areas. During the third
quarter of 2004 AUI entered into an agreement to acquire distribution assets that provide natural gas service
to approximately 112 customers in the hamlet of Suffield in southern Alberta. Subject to the approval
of the AEUB, this purchase will be the last of the small independently owned natural gas distribution
companies in Alberta.

Heritage received approval of a final Schedule of Rates, Tolls and Charges by the Nova Scotia Utility
and Review Board in June of 2004. This decision approved the requested 13.0 percent return on equity, a
45 percent equity, 55 percent debt capital structure, 8.75 percent cost of debt, capital expenditures, revenue
requirement and tariffs. Heritage is focused on building momentum for consumers to switch heating fuel
sources in Nova Scotia’s market place.

Results of operations

Net revenue for the year ended December 31, 2004, increased slightly compared to 2003 due to an increase
in the volume of gas delivered. In 2004, net revenue in AltaGas’ Natural Gas Distribution segment was $30.7
million compared to $30.6 million for the same period in 2003. AUI generates the majority of the Natural
Gas Distribution segment net revenue. AUDs net revenue is unaffected by changes in the cost of gas as the
actual cost is permitted, subject to approval by the Alberta Energy and Utilities Board, to be passed through
to the default supply customers. The increase in revenues associated with customer growth for 2004 was
partially offset by the impact of the completion of negotiations on AUI's 2003 and 2004 general rate
application. Lower than anticipated allowed rates of return on rate base and interest and operating expenses
for 2003 resulted in a charge to net income of $0.5 million in the first quarter of 2004 related to previously
recorded 2003 results.
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Heritage is in the initial stages of its planned growth and activated its Nova Scotia natural gas
distribution system in late December 2003. At the end of 2004, Heritage Gas had 138 customers using
natural gas, an additional 42 service lines installed, which will be activated early in 2005 and signed

commitments from another 36 customers, increasing its rate base to $14.7 million,

Higher operating and administrative expenses in this segment in 2004 were related to increases in the

cost of insurance, pension costs and routine operating and maintenance activities.

Net additions to capital assets in the Natural Gas Distribution segment were $9.6 million during the
year ended December 31, 2004 compared to $16.8 million for the same period in 2003. Additions in
2003 included a regulatory adjustment of $10.2 million, which had an offsetting amount charged to
accumulated amortization,

Business strategy

AUI will continue to pursue growth in its existing franchise areas and is positioned well to capture
opportunities arising in the areas around Edmonton. Inuvik Gas’ presence north of the Arctic Circle
positions it to capture possible growth as northern development occurs with the major pipeline projects
bringing Alaskan and northern Canadian gas to southern markets. Heritage Gas has a five year development
plan, filed with regulators, that involves extending its reach and customer base gradually as the Nova Scotia
markets embrace the benefits of natural gas. The development strategy of Heritage Gas is to obtain anchor
loads and other customer commitments sufficient to meet economic targets prior to undertaking system
expansions. The company has achieved the 150 customers required to meet the economic feasibility and
revenue requirement tests for expansion of natural gas service to the town of Amherst and expects that
natural gas services will be available to the town in the fourth quarter of 2005.

Business risks

AltaGas’ natural gas distribution businesses are subject to regulation in the jurisdictions in which they carry
on business. In the natural gas distribution business, where parties are subject to return on rate base
regulation, rates are set to allow the regulated entity the opportunity to cover its costs and earn a reasonable
return on a set capital structure. There is no guarantee that the entity will earn its allowed return because
rates are set to cover future estimated costs, and estimated demand is based on normal weather conditions.
The entity’s actual revenues may be more or less than forecast due to variations from normal weather,
conservation and other factors which impact customer usage. Expenses and other revenues may also be

higher or lower than forecast.
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INVESTED CAPITAL

During 2004, AltaGas acquired $130.2 million in capital assets, energy services arrangements, contracts and
relationships and long-term investments compared to $70.8 million in the previous year. Growth capital
accounted for $119.0 million of the total 2004 investment, and included gathering and processing facility
acquisitions and expansions, investments in limited partnership units of Taylor NGL Limited Partnership
(Taylor), the acquisition of the businesses of PremStar and the Alberta peaking plants capital lease.
Maintenance capital projects amounting to $6.4 million in 2004 ($10.6 million in 2003) were undertaken
mainly in the Gathering and Processing and Nartural Gas Distribution segments. Also spent in 2004 were
$4.8 million ($4.3 million in 2003) on administrative capital requirements, which generally include computer
hardware and software projects expected to increase the effectiveness of the operating and administrative
functions of the Trust.

INVESTED CAPITAL BY SEGMENT

Gathering and Energy Natural Gas
For the year ended Decernber 31, 2004 ($ millions) Processing Services Distribution Total
Net additions:
Capital assets $ 769 $ 151 $ 9.6 $ 1016
Energy services arrangements,
’ contracts and relationships - 18.4 - 18.4
Longterm investments and other assets 9.4 - 0.8 10.2
§ 863 $ 335 S 104 $ 1302
Gathering and Energy Natural Gas
For the year ended December 31, 2003 ($ mifions] Processing Sarvices Distribution Torat
Net additions:
Capital assets $ 333 S 2.5 S 168 S 526
Long-term investments and other assets 18.2 - -~ 18.2

$  SLS 3 2.5 S 168 § 708

INVESTED CARITAL BY ACTIVITY
AltaGas’ categorizes its invested capital into maintenance, growth and administrative. The breakdown for
2004 and 2003 periods are:

Gathering and Energy Natural Gas
For the year ended December 31, 2004 ($ millions) Processing Services Distribution Total
Capital
Maintenance $ 3.4 $ 02 $ 2.8 $ 6.4
Growth 79.5 33.0 6.5 119.0
Administrative 3.4 0.3 1.1 4.8

$ 863 $ 335 $ 104 $ 1302
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Gethisring and Energy Natursd Gag

For the yeer ended Decermber 31, 2003 {$ mitions) Processing Services Distribution Totat
Capital

Mairtenance 5 6.3 $ 1.9 $ 2.4 s 106

Growth 42.4 - 3.3 45.7

Adiministrative 2.8 0.6 0.9 4.3

Regulatory adjustment; - - 10.2 10.2

$ 515 $ 2.5 $ 168 $ 708

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

AltaGas enters into financial derivative contracts such as swaps and collars to manage exposure to
fluctuations in commodity prices and interest rates, particularly in the power services component and with
respect to interest rates on debt. These contracts are designed as hedges and gains and losses relating to such
contracts are deferred and recognized in the same period and financial statement category as the
corresponding hedged transaction. The most significant impact of these contracts on 2004 business has been
to provide net revenue stability in the power services component, Alberta Power Pool daily average spot
prices ranged from $7.13 per MWh to $165.47 per MWh in 2004. Through the use of financial hedges on
a portion of its 2004 power portfolio deemed optimal by management, AltaGas moderated the impact of this
volatility on its business.

AltaGas reduces financing costs and minimizes the effect of future interest rate movements on its cash
flows through the use of interest rate swaps. At December 31, 2004 AltaGas had interest rates fixed through
swap transactions with varying terms to maturity on $200.0 million of its $239.2 million total drawn bank
debt. Including AltaGas’ medium term notes (MTNs), the rate has been fixed on 85 percent of AltaGas’ total
debt. The proportion of fixed rate debt was higher than AltaGas’ target of 70 to 75 percent of total debt due
to the proceeds of the June 2004 equity offering being applied to floating rate debt.

On June 10, 2004 the Trust closed a public offering of 4,730,000 trust units, at a price of $18.70 per
trust unit for gross proceeds of $88.5 million. The net proceeds of the offering to the Trust, after payment
of fees and expenses of $4.7 million was approximately $83.8 million. The net proceeds were used to reduce
bank indebtedness and for general corporate purposes including AltaGas’ ongoing capital program, the
acquisition of EEEP and funding future acquisitions.

Invested Capital (s millions)
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LIGUIDITY AND CARITAL RESOURCES
Funds generated from operations for the year ended December 31, 2004 increased to $108.6 million from
$90.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2003.

The Trust believes that its access to debt and equity markets, unutilized bank credit facilities, funds
generated from operations and funds generated from the Trust’s Distribution Reinvestment and Premium
Distribution™ programs will provide it with sufficient capital resources and liquidity to fund existing
operations, future distributions, and certain acquisition and expansion opportunities in 2005.

The use of debt or equity funding is based on AltaGas’ capital structure, determined by considering the
norms and risks associated with each of its business components and segments. At December 31, 2004
AltaGas had total debt outstanding in its operating subsidiaries of $359.5 million compared to $396.9
million at December 31, 2003. AltaGas Operating Partnership had $100.0 million in MTNs outstanding and
AltaGas Holding Limited Partnership No. 1 had access to prime loans, banker’s acceptances and letters of
credit through bank lines of approximately $425.0 million. At December 31, 2004 AltaGas Holding Limited
Partnership No. 1 had drawn bank debt of $239.2 million and letters of credit outstanding of $28.7 million.
These two entities fund all operating subsidiaries.

As an income trust, AltaGas targets a debt to total capitalization ratio between 45 percent and 50
percent. The Trust’s debt to total capitalization ratio as at December 31, 2004 decreased to 43 percent from
52 percent at December 31, 2003.

AltaGas had a working capital deficiency of $106.5 million at December 31, 2004 compared to a
working capital surplus of $9.1 million at December 31, 2003. The primary driver for this change in working
capital is related to the classification of AltaGas® $100.0 million MTN balance as current portion of long-
term debt.

Following AltaGas’ announcement in March, 2004 of its then proposed conversion to a trust Standard
& Poor’s (S&P) confirmed the rating on AltaGas’ long-term corporate credit at BBB- with a negative outlook
and the rating on the senior unsecured debt at BBB-. The Dominion Bond Rating Service (DBRS) confirmed
the rating of AltaGas Income Trust at BBB (low) with a stable trend and applied the same rating to AltaGas
Operating Partnership and the medium term notes held by AltaGas Operating Partnership. The Trust has a
stability rating of SR-3 (stable outlook) from S&P and STA-3 (mid) from DBRS.

Total Debt (s mitlions) Total Assets (s millions)
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CONTRACTUAL CBLIGATIONS

AltaGas entered into a capital lease with Maxim Energy Group Ltd. for the right to 25 MW of gas fired
power peaking capacity and its related ancillary service and peaking sales revenues. The contract has a ten
year term commencing September 1, 2004 and includes an option at the end of the initial term to extend the
term for a further 15 years or to purchase the assets. The lease commitment is for $13.8 million, $0.8 million
of which was paid on closing with the balance due in monthly payments comprised of principal and interest
of $0.2 million.

AltaGas’ obligations for the next five years and for periods thereafter are illustrated in the table below.

Payments Due by Period

Contractual Obligations [$ millions} Total  Less than1 year 1 -3 years 4 -5 years After S years
Longterm debt 346.2 107.0t/ 239.2(¢ - -
Capital leases 18.2 1.9 3.8 3.8 8.7
Operating leases 2.2 34 5.6 0.2 -
Total contractual obligations 373.6 112.3 248.6 4.0 8.7

(1) Includes AltaGas’ $100.0 million medium term notes maturing on October 4, 2005. The balance relates to short term debt drawn
on the operating facility

(2} Extendible revolving term credit facility which can be extended beyond the current term date of November 28, 2005 for an
additional year

TRUST UNIT INFORMATION

Under the terms of the restructuring of AltaGas Services Inc. into an income trust effective May 1, 2004,
AST’s securityholders exchanged their shares in the company for trust units and eligible securityholders also
received exchangeable units. They are exchangeable into trust units on a one for one basis. The exchangeable
units are not listed for trading on an exchange.

On August 17, 2004 Enbridge Inc. completed a sale of 13,397,500 trust units of AltaGas and 4,800,000
trust units on October 4, 2004. As at December 31, 2004 Enbridge Inc. held no AltaGas trust units.

As of January 31, 2005 the Trust had 51.2 million trust units and 2.2 million exchangeable units
outstanding and a market capitalization of $1.2 billion based on a closing trading price on January 31, 2005
of $23.36 per trust unit. There are 0.2 million exercisable options under the terms of the unit option
agreement brought forward in the reorganization. All options currently issued under this plan were vested
on May 1, 2004,
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Effective January 1, 2004, AltaGas prospectively adopted the provisions of the Canadian Institute of
Chartered Accountants’ (CICA) new Accounting Guideline “Hedging Relationships” that specifies the
circumstances in which hedge accounting is appropriate, including the identification, documentation,
designation and effectiveness of hedges, and the discontinuance of hedge accounting. AltaGas’ hedging
relationships are effective and appropriately designated and documented and therefore gains and losses
relating to hedges are deferred and recognized in the same period and financial statement category as the
hedged transaction.

Effective the first quarter of 2004, AltaGas changed its accounting policy for stock-based compensation,
now recognizing the compensation expense related to stock options in the financial statements according to
the fair value method. Prior to the change in policy, the Trust did not record compensation expense but
disclosed the impact of the accounting for stock options under the fair-value method on a pro-forma basis.
Under the provisions set out by the CICA, AltaGas has adopted the change retroactively.

On January 18, 2005 the CICA issued revised draft EIC-151 “Exchangeable Securities issued by
Subsidiaries of Income Trusts” that states that exchangeable securities issued by a subsidiary of an income
trust should be reflected as either non-controlling interest or debt in the consolidated balance sheet unless
they meet certain criteria. The exchangeable units issued and outstanding at December 31, 2004 by AltaGas
Limited Partnership No. 1 meet the criteria in the draft EIC-151 and as such are reflected in unitholders’
equity in the Trust’s balance sheet.

Subsequent to the date of AltaGas financial statements, the CICA released the final version of EIC-151
with restated criteria that would require, effective June, 2005, AltaGas to reflect exchangeable securities as
non-controlling interest or debt.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Since a determination of the value of many assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses is dependent upon future
events, the preparation of the Trust’s consolidated financial statements requires the use of estimates and
assumptions which have been made using careful judgment. AltaGas’ critical accounting estimates continue
to be amortization expense, asset retirement obligations and asset impairment assessment.

With respect to impairment assessment, management has made fair value determinations related to
goodwill, estimating future cash flows as well as appropriate discount rates. The estimates have been applied

consistently with prior periods. Management has determined no impairment has occurred.
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OFF BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

The Trust is not party to any contractual arrangement under which an unconsolidated entity may have any
obligation under certain guarantee contracts, a retained or contingent interest in assets transferred to an
unconsolidated entity or similar arrangement that serves as credit, liquidity or market risk support to that
entity for such assets. The Trust has no obligation under derivative instruments, nor a material variable
interest in an unconsolidated entity that provides financing, liquidity, market risk or credit risk support to
the registrant, or engages in leasing, hedging or research and development services with the registrant.

RELATED PARTIES

The business of Taylor NGL Limited Partnership {Taylor) is the ownership and operatorship of facilities in
the midstream sector of the western Canadian natural gas industry including the Joffre ethane extraction
plant in which AltaGas has a 50 percent ownership interest. On September 4, 2003, the Trust loaned $29.0
million to Taylor. The loan was interest bearing at prime plus one percent and was repaid on October 17,
2003. On each of October 17, 2003 and August 19, 2004 the Trust purchased 1.6 million units of Taylor.
AltaGas paid $8.7 million and $10.6 million respectively for the investments.

The Trust pays rent under a lease for office space to 2013761 Ontario Inc. which is owned by an
employee. Payments of $21 thousand were made in 2004, The five year lease expires in 2007 and is
renewable at the option of AltaGas for another five years.

During 2003, AltaGas purchased maintenance services totaling $0.1 million from L.O.P. Inc. {LOP).
These transactions have been recorded at their exchange amounts. On June 30, 2004, LOP, an equity
accounted investee, repaid a $2.3 million loan extended to it by the Trust. At the same time, the Trust sold
its investment in LOP to LOP’s majority shareholder for proceeds of $0.5 million.

4TH QUARTER HIGHLIGHTS

Fourth quarter 2004 was another record quarter for the Trust generating net income of $25.8 million or
$0.49 per unit up from $12.0 million for the same period of 2003. Contributing to the quarter’s results were
the PremStar acquisition, inclusion of the first full quarter of EEEP in operating earnings and continued
strong operating results and favourable pricing in the gathering and processing, extraction and power
components of the business. The income tax benefit of the Trust structure also contributed to the growth in
net income.

Revenue for the three months ended December 31, 2004 rose 74 percent to $311.8 million compared
to the same period in 2003. The increases in revenue are¢ primarily due to the acquisition in Energy Services
and Gathering and Processing segments, internal growth, higher frac spreads and higher average prices
received on hedged power volumes sold.
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Net revenue increased 17 percent for the three months ended December 31, 2004 to $71.6 million
compared to the same period of 2003. In the extraction component and the Natural Gas Distribution and
Energy Services segments, net revenue better reflects performance than does revenue, as changes in the
market price of natural gas and power affect both revenue and the cost of goods sold.

SUMMARY OF EIGHT MOST RECENT GUARTERS(Y

(S millions) G404 G304 0204 0104 @403 03037 geox? @03
Net revenue 71.6 61.5 59.5 57.2 61.0 53.3 51.2 54.4
Net income 25.8 17.1 11.9 11.0 12.0 9.3 6.8 10.2
($ per unit)
Earnings
Basic 0.49 0.33 0.25 0.24 0.26 0.20 0.15 0.23
Diluted 0.48 0.33 0.25 0.24 0.26 0,20 Q.15 0.22
Dividends /distributions 2/ 0.45 0.45 0.30 0.11 0.1} 0.11 0.08 0.08

(1) Restated for the impacts of the adoption of CICA Handbook guidance on accounting for asset retirement obligations
(2} The Trust pays a stable monthly distribution of $0.15 per unit. The distributions for Q2 2004 are for the period starting
May 1, 2004, the effective date of the Trust

Identifiable trends in AltaGas’ business across the past eight quarters reflect the organization’s growth,
a favourable business environment, and seasonality in the business. The first and last quarters each year are
AltaGas’ most profitable on the basis of the contribution from the Natural Gas Distribution segment which,
as a distributor of natural gas for heating purposes, reports higher earnings in colder periods than in
warmer periods,

Net income of $10.2 million in the first quarter of 2003 set a new high for ASI for that period in a year.
The projects and acquisitions undertaken in the fourth quarter of 2002 were the main drivers of this
performance, along with an improved business environment in all business segments. The Wabasca facilities
acquisition increased throughput in the field gathering and processing component as did sharply
increased tie-in activity with a record 85 wells tied-in during the first quarter. Final commissioning of the
Joffre ethane extraction plant provided volume increases in the extraction component and volumes in the
transmission component were higher due to the Suffield pipelines acquisition. Unplanned outages in the
power services component, combined with higher than expected transmission costs at the Alberta Electric
System Operator, partially offset the gains made in the other segments. AltaGas commenced selling power
on April 1, 2003 from the Genesee energy contract which provides for 100 MW of power capacity from the
Genesee power plant.
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Second quarter 2003 net income was $6.8 million, 39 percent higher than the same quarter in 2002, a
result of stronger contributions from the transmission, power services and extraction components. Increases
in the transmission component related to the Suffield pipeline acquisition at the end of 2002. In the power
services component, increases in net revenue were driven by higher average prices received for power and by
the increased volumes sold resulting from the Genesee energy contract. Extraction component performance
was better than the same quarter in the prior year as a result of the commissioning of the Joffre ethane
extraction plant at the end of 2002. Improved operating income was offset by higher interest expense due to
higher debt levels in the second quarter of 2003 when compared to the same quarter of the prior year, and
as a result of a charge to income for legislative changes to the taxation of resource income.

Power services, extraction and transmission components were the key contributors in the third quarter
of 2003 to a 63 percent increase in net income to $9.3 million when compared to the third quarter of 2002.
Higher NGL fractionation spreads at the Empress ATCO extraction plant contributed to the increase. In
addition, power prices improved over the same quarter in the prior year. AltaGas paid a quarterly dividend
of $0.11 per share, up from $0.08 per share in the second quarter of 2003 on the basis of the increased
strength and sustainability of AltaGas’ earnings.

Fourth quarter 2003 net income of $12.0 million, including an unfavourable income tax expense charge
of $1.2 million related to announced changes in federal large corporation’s tax legislation, was still the
highest quarterly net income reported by AltaGas since inception. The increase from the prior year’s quarter
was a result of the late 2002 gathering and processing segment acquisitions, incremental power volumes sold
from the Genesee energy contract, strong power prices and the completion of modifications to increase
AlraGas’ share of ethane production at the EnCana-operated Empress extraction plant late in the third
quarter of 2003.

First quarter 2004 produced record net income of $11.0 million for that quarter based on increased
volumes in the Gathering and Processing and Energy Services segments which were partially offset by lower
margins in the Energy Services segment and warmer weather and regulatory adjustments in the Natural Gas

Distribution segment,

The second quarter of 2004 saw AltaGas convert from a corporate structure to an income trust, Very
strong operational performance in the second quarter of 2004 was driven by volume increases in the
Gathering and Processing segment from acquisitions and expansions and from higher power volumes sold.
Net income of $11.9 million and income per unit of $0.25 both improved substantially compared to the
same quarter of the prior year. During the quarter, the Trust made its first public offering of units as an
income trust and raised $88.5 million with net proceeds used to reduce the Trust’s debt. This quarter also
saw AltaGas commence monthly distributions to unitholders of $0.15 per unit.
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The third quarter of 2004 was the first full quarter as an income trust. The Trust generared record
funds from operations of $28.6 million and increased net income to $17.1 million or $0.33 per
unit. Highlights for the quarter that contributed to the bottom line included the closing of the EEEP
acquisition on August 25, 2004, the acquisition of the Alberta power peaking capacity and high NGLs
fractionation spreads.

Fourth quarter 2004 was highlighted above.
SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

The following table illustrates the anticipated effects of economic and operational changes on AltaGas’
2005 net income.

Increase or Decrease

Factor Share Increase or Decrease Net income per unit
Field gathering and processing volumes at existing facilities Five Mmcf/d 0.012
Field gathering and processing operating margin per mcf One cent 0.026
Electricity prices $1 per MWh 0.010
Natural gas prices $0.50/mcf 0.001
Natural gas liquids fractionation spread $1 per Bbl 0.005
Interest rates 25 basis points 0.002
Degree days (*/ Ten percent 0.015
Change in allowed ROE */ One percent 0.007

(1) Degree day - The cumulative extent to which the daily mean temperature falls below 18 degrees Celsius. Normal degree days
are based on a 20 year rolling average. The 10 percent is relative to the 20 year rolling average
(2} The change in allowed ROE pertains to AltaGas Utilities Inc.

DUTLOOK

The outlook for 2005 is positive. AltaGas expects to grow earnings and assets in all parts of its business
through internal growth opportunities and strategic acquisitions. Drilling activity in the majority of
AltaGas’ operating areas is expected to remain strong given the favourable commodity pricing
environment, resulting in high well tie-in activity in the field gathering and processing component. As well,
operating management has identified a number of internal expansion opportunities to pursue, which will
further add value in that component. Exploitation of synergies across the businesses are expected to
increase processed volumes or otherwise present improved revenue opportunities. Power prices received on
the Trust’s hedged volumes are expected to be higher in 2005 than 2004 although average spot prices on
unhedged volumes are expected to be lower. The late August 2004 acquisition of the Edmonton ethane
extraction plant, the power peaking plant purchase and the October 2004 acquisition of PremStar

businesses are expected to contribute to improved operating results for a full year in 2005.
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AltaGas has grown through accretive acquisitions in the past and expects to continue the trend. In the
current environment, multiples being paid to acquire properties are, in many cases, too high in
management’s view. Management expects to adhere to the principles it has in the past ensuring any
acquisitions it pursues will: provide long-term stable earnings and cash flows, will ensure concentrations of

risk are minimized and will create long-term value for unitholders.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On February 7, 2005 the Trust sold 1.4 million units of its investment in Taylor NGL Limited Partnership
for net proceeds of $12.8 million realizing a pre-tax gain of approximately $5.0 million. The sale reduces
AltaGas’ ownership in Taylor to 4.0 million units or 14.0 percent.

UNITHOLDER LIMITED LIABILITY LEGISLATION

On July 1, 2004, the Income Trusts Liability Act (Alberta) came into force which provides that a unitholder
will not be, as a beneficiary, liable for any act, default, obligation or liability of the Trustee that arises after
the particular provision of such legislation comes into force.

The AltaGas Income Trust indenture itself provides that no unitholder will be subject to any liability
in connection with the Trust or its obligations and affairs or for any act or omission of the trustee of the
Trust, provided that in the event that a court determines that unitholders are subject to such liabilities, the
liabilities will be enforceable only against and will be satisfied out of the Trust’s assets. The trust indenture
also provides that contracts to which the Trust is a party should contain language restricting the liability
of unitholders.
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AltaGas believes that good governance improves performance and benefits all unitholders. AltaGas is
committed to the highest standards of governance. The following is a summary of the Trust’'s Governance
Practices. A more detailed description of the Trust’s practices can be found in the Trust’s Information
Circular filed on the SEDAR system.

Statement of Governance Practices

MANDATE OF THE BOARD

The Board of Directors of the General Partner exercises overall responsibility for the management and
supervision of the affairs of the Trust. This includes the appointment of the Chief Executive Officer and
senior officers of AltaGas Ltd. and AltaGas General Partner Inc., approval of their compensation and
monitoring of the Chief Executive Officer’s performance.

The Board of Directors also reviews and adopts an annual strategic plan. Key objectives, as well as
quantifiable operational and financial targets, and systems for the identification, monitoring and mitigation
of principal business risks are incorporated into the annual strategy review.

The Board of Directors ensures that a process is established that adequately provides for succession

planning, including the appointing, training and monitoring of senior management.

The Board of Directors also annually reviews a communications policy in relation to unitholders,
employees, financial analysts, the media and other stakeholders. The policy contains procedures and
practical guidelines for the consistent, transparent, regular and timely public disclosure of material and non-
material information about the Trust.

BOARD COMPOSITION
The Board is currently composed of eight Directors, seven of whom are unrelated directors under the existing
TSX Guidelines. Mr. David Cornhill, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of AltaGas General Partner Inc.,

is the only member of the Board of Directors who is also 2 member of management.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has four standing committees: Governance; Audit; Environment and Safety; and Human
Resources and Compensation. The Governance, Audit and Human Resources and Compensation
committees are comprised solely of non-management, unrelated directors. The Environment and Safety
Committee is comprised of a majority of non-management, unrelated directors. The Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of AltaGas General Partner Inc. serves on the Environment and Safety Committee. Each
of the committees has a Board of Directors approved mandate which prescribes its composition and

responsibilities as well as administrative duties.
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GOVERNANGCE COMMITTEE

The Governance Committee is responsible for identifying individuals qualified to become Board of Directors
members, and recommending to the Board of Directors proposed nominees for election to the Board of
Directors and Board of Directors compensation. The Committee is also responsible for reviewing, reporting
and providing recommendations for improvement to the Board with respect to all aspects of governance. The
Governance Committee, on a periodic basis, assesses the effectiveness of the Board of Directors as a whole,
the Committees of the Board of Directors and the contributions of individual members. As well, the
committee is responsible for the orientation and education of new members of the Board of Directors and
continuing development of existing members of the Board of Directors.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee reviews, reports and provides recommendations to the Board of Directors on the
annual and interim financial statements and on: the integrity of the financial reporting of the Trust; the
adequacy of the Trust’s processes for identifying and managing financial risk; the adequacy of its internal
control system; the appointment, terms of engagement, provision of non-audit services and proposed fees of
the independent auditor. The Audit Committee meets regularly in-camera with the external auditor without
management present.

ENVIRONMENT AND SAFETY COMMITTEE

The Environment and Safety Committee is responsible for reviewing, reporting and making
recommendations to the Board of Directors on the Trust’s policies and procedures with respect to
environment, occupational health and safety.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

The Human Resources and Compensation Committee reviews, reports and provides recommendations to the
Board of Directors on the compensation of the Chief Executive Officer and the appointment and
compensation of senior corporate officers, succession plans, the compensation policy for all other employees
and the approval of all grants of stock options.
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Management’'s Responsibility for Financial Statements

Management recognizes that it is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements and
is satisfied that these statements have been prepared using Canadian generally accepted accounting principles
and are within reasonable limits of materiality. Further, management is satisfied that the financial
information contained in this annual report is consistent with that presented in the consolidated financial
statements. The Trust’s internal controls and systems are designed to provide reasonable assurance that its
assets are safeguarded and to facilitate the preparation of relevant, reliable and timely information.

External auditors have been engaged by the Trust to examine the consolidated financial statements. The
Audit Committee of the Board of Directors has reviewed these statements with the external auditors and
management and has reported its findings to the Board. The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of
the Audit Committee, has approved the consolidated financial statements contained in this report.

%/Ké‘/ X i = Ny

David W. Cornhill Patricia M. Newson

Chairman of the Board and Chief Financial Officer

Chief Executive Officer of AltaGas General Partner Inc.,

of AltaGas General Partner Inc., delegate of the Trustee of AltaGas Income Trust

delegate of the Trustee of AltaGas Income Trust

February 14, 20058

Auditors' Report

To the Unitholders of AltaGas Income Trust

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of AltaGas Income Trust as at December 31, 2004 and 2003
and the consolidated statements of income and accumulated earnings and cash flows for the years then
ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Trust’s management. Qur responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of AltaGas Income Trust as at December 31, 2004 and 2003 and the results of its operations and its

cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Ernat ?M/, “uP

February 14, 2005 Chartered Accountants

Calgary, Canada
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

as at December 31

($ thousands) 2004 2003
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents (note 5) $ 2,669 $ -
Customer deposits 26,550 -
Accounts receivable 160,507 $8.463
Inventory 250 1,879
Other 4,845 5,806
194,821 96,148
Capital assets fnotes 6 and 10) 746,729 677,911
Energy services arrangements, contracts and relationships (note 7) 113,102 104,038
Goodwill 18,860 18,660
Future income taxes (note 16) 208 208
Longterm investments and other assets (rotes 8 and 19) 34,876 25,098
$ 1,108,596 S 919.260
LIABILITIES AND UNITHOLDERS ERUITY
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 144,594 $ 74,726
Distributions payable to unitholders 7,979 -
Short-term debt (note 9/ 7,016 4,493
Current portion of longterm debt (note ro) 101,001 -
Customer deposits 26,550 -
Other 14,193 7,857
301,333 87,076
Longterm debt (rote 10) 251,462 392,358
Asset retirement obligations (note r1) 16,122 13,962
Future income taxes (note 16} 56,164 62,537
323,748 468,857
Unitholders’ equity (notes 13 and 14) 483,515 363,327
$ 1,108,596 $ 919,260

Commitments (notes 2, 7, 9, 10, 12 and 15)
See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements

Approved by the Board of Directors of AltaGas General Partner Inc. on behalf of AltaGas Income Trust:

-

L

Director Director
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Consolidated Statements of Income and Accumulated Earnings

for the years ended December 31

{% thousands except per unit amounts) 2004 2003
REVENUE
Operating $ 857,419 § 709,766
Other 1,800 838
859,219 710,604
EXPENSES
Cost of sales 609,449 490,747
Operating and administrative 116,393 97.991
Amortization:
Capital assets 35,609 32317
Energy services arrangements and contracts 6,217 3,995
767,668 627,050
Operating income 91,551 83,554
Interest expense (notes 9, 10 and 12)
Short-term debt 563 1,406
Longterm debt 20,576 20,666
Income before income taxes 70,412 61,482
Income taxes (note 16) 4,611 23,159
Net income 65,801 38,323
Accumulated earnings, beginning of year 131,350 93.027
Adjustment for change in accounting policy (note 3) (332) -
Accumulated earnings, end of year $ 196,819 S 131,350
Net income per unit (note 14)
Basic $ 1.33 $ 0.84
Dituted $ 1.31 $ 0.84

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements

ANNUAL REPORT 2004

53



54

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

for the years ended December 31

[$ thousands) 2004 2003
CASH FROM OPERATIONS
Net income 65,801 5 38,323
{tems not involving cash:
Amortization 41,826 38,312
Accretion of asset retirement obligations 1,094 920
Stock option compensation (rote 3) 2,490 -
Future income taxes (recovery) (3,104) 12,572
Loss (gain) on sale of assets and investments 53 1371
Equity income (1,930) (719)
Distributions from equity investments 1,976 903
Other 378 236
Funds generated from operations 108,584 30,176
Net change in noncash working capital (note r7) 39,122 6,292
147,706 96,468
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
increase in customer deposits (26,550) -
Acquisition of capital assets (94,786} (44,243}
Disposition of capital assets 157 1,370
Acquisition of energy services arrangements and contracts (12) (23)
Acquisition of longterm investments and other assets (13,693) (138,612}
Bisposition of longterm investments and other assets 3,444 1,331
(131,440) (60,181}
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Decrease in shortterm and longterm debt (51,479) {22,647)
Dividends {5,051} (17,292}
Distributions to unitholders (§3,672) -
Costs of issuing units on conversion (nrote 14) (8,620) -
Net proceeds from issuance of units and common shares (note 14/ 105,225 3.652
(13,597) (36,287}
Change in cash and cash equivalents 2,669 -
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year - -
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 2,669 M -

See accomparnying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(tabular amounts in thousands of dollars)

1. STRUCTURE QF ALTAGAS INCOME TRUST

AltaGas Income Trust (AltaGas or the Trust) is an unincorporated open-ended trust established under the
laws of Canada, pursuant to a Declaration of Trust dated March 26, 2004. The Trust commenced operations
on May 1, 2004 as successor to AltaGas Services Inc. (ASI) when it acquired all of the shares of ASI for
consideration of trust units or exchangeable units on a one for one basis. These audited consolidated
financial statements follow the continuity of interest basis of accounting whereby the Trust is considered a
continuation of ASL. As a result, the comparative period figures are those of ASI while the results of
operations include ASD’s results for the period up to and including April 30, 2004 and the Trust’s results of
operations from May 1, 2004 to December 31, 2004.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIGIES
These consolidated financial statements are prepared by management in accordance with Canadian generally

accepted accounting principles. Significant accounting policies are summarized below:

Basis of Presentation

These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of AltaGas Income Trust and all of its wholly-
owned subsidiaries, and its proportionate interests in the ASTC Power Partnership, Heritage Gas Limited
and Inuvik Gas Ltd. Transactions between the Trust, wholly-owned subsidiaries and the proportionate
interests are eliminated on consolidation.

The Trust’s subsidiary, AltaGas Utilities Inc. is engaged in the distribution and sale of natural gas in
various communities located within the province of Alberta and is regulated by the Alberta Energy and
Utilities Board (AEUB). These regulations cover such matters as tariffs, rates, construction, operations,
financing and accounting. AltaGas Utilities Inc.s accounting policies conform to generally accepted
accounting principles in the utility industry and reflect the policies established from time to time by the AEUB.

The Trust has entered into joint venture arrangements, and accordingly the accounts reflect only the
Trust’s proportionate interest in these activities.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and balances with banks, and investments in money

market instruments with maturities less than three months.

Customer Deposits

Cash deposited by customers under the terms of natural gas and power marketing contracts is invested in
short-term deposits with a Canadian Chartered bank. These funds are restricted and are not available for
general use by the Trust. The offsetting liability is classified as customer deposits within current liabilities.

Inventory
Materials and supplies are valued at the lower of average cost and replacement cost. Natural gas inventories

are valued at the lower of cost or current market values.

Capital Assets and Amortization

Capital assets are recorded at cost plus interest incurred during the construction period to finance long-term
construction projects. The allowance for funds used during the construction of regulated natural gas
distribution assets is capitalized at rates authorized by the regulatory authorities in Alberta and Nova Scotia.

ANNUAL REPORT 2004

55




56

Contributions in aid of construction of natural gas distribution assets are deducted from the cost of acquiring
capital assets, with subsequent amortization calculated on the net cost. Repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the period incurred,

The Trust amortizes the cost of capital assets, net of salvage value, on a straight-line basis based on the
estimated useful life of the assets except for regulated natural gas distribution assets, where amortization is
calculated on a straight-line basis at rates approved by the regulatory authority.

Gathering and Processing
Gathering and processing assets 15 - 40 years
Other assets 1 -5 years

Energy Services

Energy services assets 8 — 20 years
Capital lease 10 years
Other assets 1 -5 years

Natural Gas Distribution
Natural gas distribution assets 0.8 - 21.2 percent
Other assets 2.5 - 33.3 percent

AlraGas follows the full cost method of accounting for oil and gas exploration and development
activities. Capitalized costs are accumulated in a single cost centre and amortized to income on a unit of

production basis over the estimated production life of proved reserves.

Leases are classified as either capital or operating. Leases which transfer substantially all the benefits
and risks of ownership of property to AltaGas are accounted for as capital leases. Capital leases are
accounted for as assets and are amortized on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The capital lease
obligations reflect the present value of future lease payments. The finance element of the lease payments is
charged to income over the term of the lease. Commitments to repay the principal amounts arising under
capital lease obligations are included in current liabilities to the extent that the amount is repayable within
one year; otherwise the principal is included as a long-term liability.

Energy Services Arrangements, Contracts, Relationships and Amortization
Energy services arrangements, contracts and relationships are recorded at cost which was fair value at the
time of purchase, and are amortized on a straight-line basis over their term or estimated useful life:

Sundance Power Purchase Arrangements (PPAs) 19 years
Natural gas and power marketing contracts 18 months
Energy services relationships 15 years

AltaGas owns 50 percent of two Sundance B PPAs through its interest in the ASTC Power Partnership
(ASTC). ASTC is committed to purchase all of the power from the 706 megawatt capacity Sundance
generating units. The investment in the PPAs and their revenue and expenses thereunder are recorded on a
proportionate basis. The Sundance B PPAs are the right to the committed generating capacity of two
regulated Alberta generating units and required a capital outlay to acquire. The Trust is obligated to make
payments to the owners of the underlying generating units over the remaining terms of the PPAs to
December 31, 2020. Such amounts are recorded as cost of sales as incurred. Revenue from the sale of the
committed power is recorded when delivered.

ALTAGAS INCOME TRUST




The Genesee energy contract is the right to generating capacity at a regulated Alberta generating unit
for a three year period ending March 31, 2006 which required no capital outlay but includes monthly
capacity charges, which amounts are recorded as cost of sales. Revenue from the sale of the committed power
is recorded when delivered.

The Marketing service arrangements and contracts are the rights and obligations to buy and sell fixed
volumes of natural gas and power at contracted prices, Revenue and expenses are recorded when delivered.

Energy services relationships were purchased along with substantially all of the assets and liabilities of
PremStar Energy Canada Ltd., ECNG Inc. and Energistics Group Inc. and are recorded at fair value and
amortized on a straight-line basis commencing with the termination of the related short-term contracts over
the 15 year expected useful life of the relationships.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents that portion of the purchase price of the Suffield natural gas pipeline system which was
in excess of the fair value of the net assets acquired. Goodwill is not subject to amortization but is tested at
least annually for impairment by comparing the fair value of the natural gas transmission component with
its book value,

Long-Term Investments and Other Assets

Investments in entities in which AltaGas has the ability to exercise significant influence are accounted for by
the equity method. Other long-term investments are recorded at cost. Any other than temporary impairment
in value of an investment is charged against income when determined.

Asset Retirement Obligations

The Trust recognizes asset retirement obligations in the period in which the obligation is incurred and a
reasonable estimate of a fair value can be determined. The associated asset retirement costs are capitalized
as part of the carrying amount of the asset and are depreciated over the estimated useful life of the asset. The
liability is increased due to the passage of time over the estimated period until the settlement of the
obligation, with an offsetting charge to accretion expense in the income statement.

In the Natural Gas Distribution and Gathering and Processing segments, certain of AltaGas’ assets have

an indeterminate life and thus a future retirement obligation is not recognized.

Cerivative Instruments

AltaGas enters into financial derivative contracts such as swaps and collars to manage exposure to
fluctuations in commodity prices and interest rates. These contracts are designated as hedges when the
underlying risks of the hedged and hedging instruments offset to manage the Trust’s exposure. Gains and
losses relating to such contracts are deferred and recognized in the same period and financial statement
category as the corresponding hedged transaction. If financial derivative contracts cease to be effective as
hedges or if the hedge relationship is terminated, any cumulative gains or losses arising prior to such time
continue to be deferred over the period of the original hedged transaction and subsequent changes in the fair
value of the derivative contracts are recognized as adjustments to income. The effectiveness of hedges is
tested quarterly to ensure the correlation of the underlying risks.
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AltaGas enters into commodity derivative contracts for the future delivery of commodities at fixed
prices. These contracts are not recognized in the financial statements until they are settled.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue for gathering and processing services is recorded as the services are rendered. Energy markering and
natural gas distribution revenue are recognized at the time the product is delivered.

Unit Based Compensation Plans

The Trust follows the fair value method of accounting for trust unit options granted during the year. Unit options
are valued at the date of the grant and recognized as compensation expense over the vesting period of the options.
Consideration received by the Trust on exercise of the option rights is credited to unitholders’ capiral.

AltaGas has an incentive phantom unit plan which requires settlement by cash payments. During the
graded vesting period, compensation expense is recognized using the liability method and is recorded as
operating and administrative expense over the life of the vesting period. A change in value of the phantom

units is recognized in the period the change occurs.

Pension Plans and Retirement Benefits

The cost of defined benefit pension and other retirement benefits is actuarially determined using the projected
benefit method prorated on service and management’s best estimate of expected plan investment
performance, salary escalation, retirement ages of employees and expected health care costs. The current
service cost of the benefit is the sum of the individual current service costs, and the accrued benefit obligation
is the sum of the accrued liabilities for all participants.

For purposes of calculating the expected return on plan assets, those assets are valued at fair value, The
cumulative net actuarial gain or loss at the beginning of the year in excess of 10 percent of the greater of the
accrued benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets is amortized on a straight-line basis over the
average remaining service life of the active employees. The average remaining service periods of the active
members covered by the pension plans and other retirement benefits plans are 14 to 16 years. Transitional
obligations are being amortized on a straight-line basis over the remaining service life of active employees.
Past service costs resulting from plan amendments are amortized on a straight-line basis over the average
remaining service life of active employees for the respective plan.

Income Taxes

The Trust is a taxable entity under the Income Tax Act (Canada) and is taxable on income that is not
distributed or distributable to the unitholders. As the Trust allocates all of its Canadian taxable income to
the unitholders in accordance with its Trust indenture, and meets the requirements of the Income Tax Act
(Canada) applicable to the Trust, no provision for Canadian income tax expense has been made for AltaGas
Income Trust.

Except for rate-regulated natural gas distribution subsidiaries, income taxes are calculated in the
subsidiary companies of the Trust using the liability method of tax accounting. Under this method, future
income tax assets and liabilities are determined based on differences between the financial reporting and tax
bases of assets and liabilities, and are measured using the substantively enacted tax rates and laws that are
anticipated to be in effect in the periods in which the differences are expected to be settled or realized.
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Income taxes in the rate regulated natural gas distribution subsidiaries are provided using the taxes
payable method approved by the regulatory authorities. In accordance with regulated accounting, provision
is made only for those income taxes currently payable and no future tax is recorded on the differences
between the financial reporting and tax basis of assets and liabilities.

Per Unit Information
Basic net income per unit is calculated on the basis of the weighted average number of trust and exchangeable
units outstanding during the year. Diluted net income per unit is calculated as if the proceeds obtained upen

exercise of options were used to purchase units at the average market price during the year.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the period. By their nature, these
estimates are subject to measurement uncertainty and may impact the financial statements of future periods.

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

Effective January 1, 2004 the Trust retroactively adopted the fair value method of accounting for stock or unit
options approved by the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants. This change in accounting policy
resulted in a reduction of opening accumulated earnings for 2004 of $0.3. million and an increase to
contributed surplus.

Stock option compensation expense charged to operating and administrative expense for the year ended
December 31, 2004 is $2.5 million with a corresponding increase to contributed surplus. No compensation
expense is recorded for stock options issued prior to January 1, 2002.

Previously, AltaGas accounted for stock based compensation using the intrinsic value method of
accounting. No compensation expense was recognized for stock options granted, burt it was disclosed on a
proforma basis in the notes to the consolidated financial statements. Proceeds received on the exercise of
stock options was credited to unit capital.

4. ACOUISITIONS

On October 6, 2004 AltaGas acquired substantially all of the assets and liabilities of PremStar Energy Canada
Ltd. and its subsidiaries ECNG Inc. and Energistics Group Inc. for $21.9 million including acquisition costs.
Consideration paid was $1.5 million cash and trust units with an ascribed value of $19.0 millien issued from
treasury. The acquisition was accounted for using the purchase method, whereby assets acquired are recorded
at fair value and the results are included in these consolidated financial statements from the date of
acquisition. The allocation of the purchase price has not been finalized and may be subject to adjustment.

Net Assets Acquired

Working capital ‘ 3 2,568
Capital assets 905
Energy services arrangements and contracts : 1,839
Energy services relationships 16,548
21,860

Net acquisition costs (1,341)
$ 20,519
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5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2004 2003
Cash on hand and balances with banks $ 1,919 $ -
Short-term investments 750 -
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,669 S -
The effective interest rate on short-term investments was 1.8 percent.
8. CAPITAL ASSETS
2004 2005
Accumulated Net book Accumwiated Net boai
Cost amortization valug Cost: amortization value
Bathering and Processing
Gathering and processing assets  $695,292  $111,024  $584,268 $621,817 § 88,599  $3533,218
Cther assets 10,969 4,282 6,687 7,850 1,430 6,070
Energy Services
Energy services assets 28,913 9,999 18,914 27,910 7,837 20,083
Capital lease 13,798 457 13,341 - - -
Cther assets 2,831 1,466 1,365 2,515 1,101 1414
Natural Gas Distribution
Natural gas distribution assets 165,557 60,394 105,163 157,062 54,606 102,456
Other assets 26,625 9,634 16,991 25,315 10,815 14,700
$943,985 $197,256 §$746,729 $842,369 $164.458 $677,911

Interest capitalized on long-term capital construction projects for the year ended December 31, 2004 was
$0.2 million {2003 - $0.2 million). At December 31, 2004 the Trust had spent approximately $24.9 million
(2003 - $13.4 million) on capital projects under construction that were not yet subject to amortization.

7. ENERGY SERVICES ARRANGEMENTS, CONTRACTS AND RELATIONSHIPS

2004 2003
Accumulated Net book Accumulated Net baok
Cost smortization value Cost amartization vaiug
Energy services arrangements
and contracts $115,217 § 18,663 $ 96,554 $113.367 5 12,332 S104,035
Energy services relationships 16,548 - 16,548 - - -
$131,765 § 18,663 $113,102 $113367 § 12,332 §101,035
The amortization of the energy services relationships will begin on April 1, 2006.

8. LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS
2004 20013
Common shares of public companies $ 475 S 825
Common shares of private companies 696 §41
Equity accounted investments in units of a public partnership 30,665 17,925
Equity accounted investments in common shares of private companies - 654
Advances (note 20/ - 2.335
Other 3,040 2,518
$ 34,876 $ 25,098

ALTAGAS INCOME TRUST




At December 31, 2004 the quoted market value of the holdings of public entities was approximately
$45.9 million (2003 - $22.1 million). The fair market value of investments in private companies is not
reasonably determinable.

The Trust owns approximately 18.9 percent of Taylor NGL Limited Partnership {Taylor), which is
accounted for by the equity method.

9. SHORT-TERM DEBT

At December 31, 2004 the Trust, through AltaGas Holdings Limited Partnership No. 1, held a $50.0 million
(2003 held by AltaGas Services Inc. - $50.0 million) unsecured demand operating credit facility with a
Canadian chartered bank. Draws on the facility bear interest at the lender’s prime rate or at the bankers’
acceptance rate plus a stamping fee. At December 31, 2004 the Trust had prime loans of $7.0 million and letters
of credit of $6.9 million (2003 ~ $4.4 million and $14.6 million respectively) outstanding against the facility.

At December 31, 2004 the Trust, through AltaGas Holdings Limited Partnership No. 1, held a $75.0
million (2003 held by AltaGas Services Inc. ~ $75.0 million) unsecured 364 day extendible revolving term
letter of credit facility with a Canadian chartered bank. The facility has a maturity date of November 28,
2005 and can be extended for 364 days from the maturity date. AltaGas may borrow up to $25.0 million
by way of prime loans, US base rate loans, Libor loans or bankers’ acceptances on the letter of credit facility.
Borrowings on the facility bear fees and interest at rates relevant to the nature of the draw made. Ar
December 31, 2004 the Trust had drawn debt of nil (2003 ~ $0.1 million) and letters of credit of $28.7
million (2003 - $11.9 million) outstanding against the extendible revolving term letter of credit facility.

The prime lending rate at December 31, 2004 was 4.25 percent (2003 ~ 4.50 percent). The average rate
on the Trust’s outstanding bankers’ acceptances at December 31, 2004 was 3.86 percent (2003 - 4.00 percent).

10. LONG-TERM DEBT

2004 2003

Operating loans $ 239,210 $ 292,358
Capital lease obligation 13,253 -
Medium term notes 100,000 100,000
$ 352,463 $ 392,358

Less current portion ) 101,001 -

$ 251,462 § 392,338

Operating Loans

At December 31, 2004 the Trust, through AltaGas Holdings Limited Partnership No. 1, held a $300.0
million (2003 held by AltaGas Services Inc. — $300.0 million) unsecured extendible revolving term credit
facility with a syndicate of Canadian chartered banks. Borrowings on the facility can be by way of prime
loans, US base rate loans, Libor loans, bankers’ acceptances or documentary credits. Borrowings on the
facility bear fees and interest at rates relevant to the nature of the draw. The facility has a maturity date of
November 28, 2005 and can be extended for an additional year at that time or the facility can be converted
by the Trust to a two year term loan. The term loan is repayable over the two year period or at the end of
the two year term, depending on the senior unsecured debt rating of the Trust or certain subsidiaries or
partnerships of the Trust. At December 31, 2004 the Trust had drawn bankers’ acceptances of $239.0 million
{2003 - $289.0 million) outstanding against the facility.
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Medium Term Notes

A short form shelf prospectus was filed on January 10, 2003 to renew for a two year period the medium term
note (MTN) program initiated on September 27, 2000. MTNs may be issued in an aggregate principal amount
of up to $250.0 million at prices and terms determined at the time of issue. On October 4, 2000, $100.0
million of 7.28 percent MTNs were issued pursuant to the program. Interest is payable semi-annually and the
principal is due on October 4, 2005. On May 1, 2004 AltaGas Operating Partnership assumed all of the
obligations, indebtedness and liabilities of AltaGas Services Inc. pursuant to the MTN Trust Indenture dated
September 27, 2000, the First Supplemental Indenture dated May 1, 2004 and the MTNs.

Capital Lease Obligation
On September 1, 2004 the Trust entered into a 10 year capital lease with an option to extend the term for
an additional 1§ years. The lease has payment commitments over the next five years as follows:

2005 $ 1,878
2008 1,878
2007 1,878
2008 1,878
2008 1,878
Thereafter 8,769
18,159

Less imputed interest at 6.85 percent (4,906)
Present value of minimum lease payments 13,253
Less current portion (1,001)
$ 12,252

Interest expense on capital leases amount to $0.3 million (2003 - nil).

11. ASSET RETIREMENT UOBLIGATIUNS
December 31, 2004  Cegembar 31, 2003

Balance, beginning of year 3 13,962 S 12,925
New obligations in the year 1,066 147
Accretion expense 1,094 920
Balance, end of year $ 16,122 § 13,962

AltaGas estimates the undiscounted cash required to settle the asset retirement obligations is $49.1
million (2003 - $45.0 million). The asset retirement obligations have been recorded in the financial
statements at estimated values discounted at rates between 7.6 percent and 8.5 percent and are expected to
be incurred between 2010 and 2040. The majority of the costs are expected to be incurred between 2025
and 2035. No assets have been legally restricted for settlement of the estimated liability.

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

In the course of normal operations the Trust issues short and long-term debt, and purchases and sells natural
gas and power commodities. These activities result in exposures to fluctuations in interest rates and
commodity prices. The Trust uses financial derivative instruments that result in cash settlements to manage
the price or cash flow risk that results from these activities. The Trust does not make use of derivative
instruments for speculative purposes.
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The fair values of financial derivatives have been estimated using year-end market rates. These fair
values approximate the amount that the Trust would receive or pay if the instruments were closed out at
these dates.

Commodity Price Risk Management

Under the PPAs AltaGas has an obligation to buy power at agreed terms and prices to December 31, 2020.
The Trust sells the power to the Alberta Electric System Operator at spot prices and uses swaps and collars
to fix the prices over time on a portion of the volumes. AltaGas’ strategy is to lock in margins to provide
predictable earnings. At December 31, 2004 the Trust had no intention to terminate any contracts prior to
maturity.

At December 31 the Trust had the following contracts outstanding:

Fixed Price Period Notional Valume [MWh)

Berivative instruments {per MWh} [months) Sales Purchases Fair Value
2004

Swaps and collars $41.50 t0 63.25 3t012 2,440,573 - $ 1,307
Swap $ 55.77 156 - 341,856 $  (2,099)
2003

Swaps and collars $41.50 1o 32.00 12018 2531176 - § (17,834)
Swap $ 56,43 168 - 368,064 S {3,394}

interest Rate Risk Management

To hedge against the effect of future interest rate movements, the Trust enters into interest rate swap
agreements to fix the interest rate on a portion of its bankers’ acceptances issued under credit facilities. The
Trust has no intention of terminating any swap agreements priot to maturity,

At December 31 the Trust had the following contracts outstanding:

Weighted
Period Principal Average Fair Value

Interest rate swaps [months) Interest Rate
2004 31051 $ 200,000 3.93% $ (1,797)
2003 3t 60 $ 180,000 4.21% S {1,576}

Credit Risk on Financial Instruments
Credit risk results from the possibility that a counterparty to a derivative in which the Trust has an unrealized

gain fails to perform according to the terms of the contract.

Credit exposure is minimized by entering into transactions with credit worthy counterparties in
accordance with established credit policies and practices. At December 31, 2004 AltaGas did not have a
significant concentration of credit risk with any single counterparty to financial contracts.
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13, UNITHOLDERS' EQUITY
December 31, 2004  Cecamber 31, 2003

Unitholders' capital (nofe 14 $ 386,638 S 268,040
Contributed surplus (note 3) 2,823 -
Accumulated earnings 196,819 151,350
Accumuiated dividends (41,114) (36,063)
Accumulated unitholders' distributions declared (61,651) -

$ 483,515 $ 363,327

For the year ended December 31, 2004 $5.1 million (2003 - $17.3 million) of dividends and $53.7
million (2003 - nil) of distributions were paid by the Trust.

14. UNITHOLDERS CAPITAL
Authorized December 31, 2003
- an unlimited number of common shares without nominal or par value

- an unlimited number of preferred shares without nominal or par value

Authorized December 31, 2004
—  an unlimited number of trust vnits redeemable for cash at the option of the holder

- an unlimited number of AltaGas Holding Limited Partnership No. 1 (LP1) class B limited partnership
units which are exchangeable into trust units on a one for one basis. Prior to May 1, 2014 the exchange
is at the option of the unitholder at any time, and at the option of the Trust should the number of LP1
units outstanding fall below 750,000. After May 1, 2014 the exchange is at the option of either the
Trust or the unitholder.

- an unlimited number of AltaGas Holding Limited Partnership No. 2 (LP2) class B limited partnership
units which are exchangeable into trust units on a one for one basis. Prior to May 1, 2009 the exchange
is at the option of the unitholder at anytime, and at the option of the Trust should the number of LP2
units outstanding fall below 1,000,000, After May 1, 2009 the exchange is at the option of either the
Trust or the unitholder.

Common shares issued and outstanding:

Number Amount
December 31, 2002 36,237,092 $ 175526
issued for cash on exercise of options 471,752 3,652
Issued for compensation 8,000 98
December 31, 2003 36,716,844 179,076
Common shares issued for cash on exercise of options 209,449 1,752
Common shares issued for compensation 2,000 39
Common shares issued on conversion of preferred shares 9,000,000 88,964
Common shares repurchased and cancelled on trust conversion (45,928,293) (269,831)
December 31, 2004 - -
Preferred shares issued and outstanding:
December 31, 2002 9,000,000 §8.964
December 31, 2003 9,000,000 88,964
Converted to common shares (9,000,000) (88,964)

December 31, 2004 - -
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Trust units issued and outstanding:

Number Amount
December 31, 2003 - -
Units issued on conversion (net of $5.8 million of after tax conversion costs) 33,668,068 194,073
Units issued on public unit offering (net of $4.7 million of issuance costs) 4,730,000 83,760
Units issued on purchase of assets 993,789 18,961
Units issued for cash on exercise of options 1,022,127 9,638
Units issued under distribution reinvestment program 521,326 10,038
Units issued for exchangeable units 8,889,931 50,879
December 31, 2004 49,825,241 367,349
Exchangeable units issued and outstanding:
December 31, 2003 - -
Issued by LP1 (net of corversion costs) 3,394,216 19,426
Issued by LP2 (net of conversion costs) 8,866,009 50,742
LP1 units redeemed for trust units (23,922) (137)
LP2 units redeemed for trust units (8,866,009) (50,742)
Becember 31, 2004 3,370,294 19,289
tssued and outstanding December 31, 2004 53,195,535 $386,638

The Trust has an employee unit option plan under which both employees and directors are eligible to

receive grants. At December 31, 2004 3,800,000 units were reserved for issuance under the plan. To

December 31, 2004 options granted under the plan generally had a term of 10 years to expiry and vested no

longer than over a four year period. On May 1, 2004 subsequent to the establishment of the Trust all options

granted were vested. There have been no options granted since May 1, 2004.

At December 31, 2004 outstanding options are exercisable at various dates to the year 2014 (2003 -
2013). Options outstanding under the plan have a weighted average exercise price of $9.02 (2003 ~ $8.74) and

a weighted average remaining term of 7.44 years (2003 -7.21 years). As at December 31, 2004 the unexpensed

fair value of unit option compensation cost associated with future periods was nil (2003 - $2.3 million).

Expiry date Number of options Exercise price
2009 10,900 $7.00
2010 8,000 $5.20
2011 146,075 $6.09-7.25
2012 92,250 $6.50-9.75
2013 61,386 $9.48 - 15.05
2014 30,800 $15.14 - 15.87
349,411
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2004 2003

Weighted Average WWeighted Average

Number of Options Exercise Price Nurnbar of Qptions Exercice Pricg

Stock options outstanding, beginning of year 1,506,362 $ 8.74 1,670,676 S 7.66
Granted 107,000 15.07 400,638 11.76
Exercised (1,231,576) 9.25 (471,752 7.74
Cancelled (32,375) 7.24 {93,200} 747
Unit options outstanding, end of year 349,411 $ 9.02 1,506,362 $ 8§.74
Exercisable at end of year 349,411 $ 9.02 622,974 S 7.78

The basic number of units outstanding for the year ended December 31, 2004 was 49.4 million
(December 31, 2003 - 45.5 million ASI shares) and the diluted number of units outstanding for the year
ended December 31, 2004 was 50.2 million (December 31, 2003 - 45.9 million ASI shares).

15, COMMITMENTS
Future minimum lease payments under operating leases for office space, office equipment and automotive

equipment are estimated as follows:

2005 $ 3,392
2006 3,039
2007 2,628
2008 145
2009 31

$ 9,235

Under the terms of a 1997 long-term gas supply contract the Trust is committed to supply natural gas
for prices ranging from $2.12/Mcf in 2004 to $2.40/Mcf by contract expiry in 2009. The Trust contracted
with several producers to provide the volumes for the term of the 10 year contract. One of those producers
defaulted in 1999 on its obligation under its gas supply contract, resulting in the delivery commitment for
2,845 Mcf/d being assumed by the Trust. The Trust owns natural gas reserves as a hedge against the
obligation under this supply contract. The natural gas produced from these reserves is in excess of the

commitment under the contract.

In addition to the production from its own reserves, in 1999 the Trust acquired a right to purchase
natural gas from specific reserves for $0.05 per Mcf for the life of the reserves. The production from these
reserves was 1,138 Mcf/d in 2004 (2003 - 1,407 Mcf/d) and also serves as a hedge against the commitment
under the contract.

The Trust was a successful bidder for 100 megawatts of power capacity in the Alberta government’s
second phase of the Market Achievement Plan auction. As a result, the Trust entered into an energy contract
(Genesee Energy Contract) with the Balancing Poo! Administrator for the right and obligation to purchase
power from 100 megawatts of power capacity at the EPCOR Generation Inc. operated Genesee power plant
for a three year term commencing April 1, 2003. The Trust has an obligation to pay a competitively priced
fixed monthly capacity charge for the power capacity under this power purchase arrangement.

ALTAGAS INCOME TRUST




16. INCOME TAXES

Taxation of the Trust

Payments received by the Trust in the form of interest, distributions or other income from its subsidiaries are
taxable income to the Trust. The Trust is entitled to deduct for income tax purposes its costs and its
distributions to unitholders and since it distributes all of its income to unitholders, the Trust is not expected
to be liable for income taxes either currently or in the foresecable future.

Taxation of the Operating Subsidiaries

Incorporated operating subsidiaries of the Trust are subject to tax in the same manner as any other
corporation. Operating subsidiaries are generally not expected to pay significant taxes, with the exception
of the Large Corporations Tax, either currently or in the foreseeable future under existing tax legislation.
Subsidiaries of the Trust that operate under utility board regulation will incur and expense income tax
annually on income earned.

Consolidated Tax Position .
The tax provision recorded on the consolidated financial statements differs from the amount computed by
applying the combined Canadian federal and provincial income tax statutory rates to income before tax

as follows:
2004 2003
Income before taxes — consolidated $ 70,412 S 61,482
Income from AltaGas Income Trust distributed to unitholders (48,616) -
Income before taxes - operating subsidiaries 21,796 61,482
Statutory income tax rate 38.87% 40.75%
Expected taxes at statutory rate 8,472 25,054
Add (deduct] the tax effect of:
Resource allowance (2,529) (2,351
Manufacturing and processing credit (136) (426)
Large Corporations Tax 1,129 1.179
Rate reductions applied to future income tax liabilities (3,418) (628}
Permanent differences between accounting and
tax bases of assets and liabilities 527 {358}
Other 566 689
Income tax provision .
Current 7,715 10,587
Future (3,204) 12,572
$ 4,611 § 23,139
Effective income tax rate 6.55% 37.67%

AltaGas’ income taxes are calculated according to government tax laws and regulations which result in
different values for certain assets and liabilities for income tax purposes than for financial statement purposes.
The amount shown on the Consolidated Balance Sheets as future income tax assets and liabilities represents
the nert differences between tax values and book carrying values on the operating subsidiaries’ balance sheets
at substantively enacted tax rates. Generally accepted accounting principles require these future income tax
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assets or liabilities to be recognized in the consolidated financial statements. In the case of AltaGas, these
future income taxes are not expected to result in cash taxes being paid due to the expectation of continued
future intercompany interest deductions at the operating subsidiary level.

As at December 31 future income taxes are comprised of the following:

2004 2003

Assets Liabilities Agsets Ligbilities

Capital assets $ ~ $ 29,492 $ - $ 40,189
Net operating losses unused for tax purposes 208 - 208 {6,002}
Deferred debt charges - 87 - 83
Share issue costs - (3,013) - (511)
Partnerships - 28,890 - 28,426
Other - 708 - 350
$ 208 $ 56,164 S 208 $ 62,537

Future income tax expense and future income tax assets and liabilities have not been recognized for the
Trust’s rate regulated natural gas distribution subsidiary. Unrecognized future income tax expense for the
year ended December 31, 2004 is $0.9 million (2003 - $0.2 million). Unrecognized future income tax
liabilities at December 31, 2004 are $7.4 million (2003 - $6.5 million).

17. NET CHANGE IN NON-CASH WODRKING CAPITAL
The net change in the following non-cash working capital items increases (reduces) cash flows from
operations as follows:

2004 2003

Accounts receivable $  (72,044) S 10,533
inventory 1,629 1.891
Other current assets 961 (6263
Accounts payable and accrued liahilities 69,868 (2,439)
Distributions payable to unitholders 7,979 -
Customer deposits 26,550 -
Other current liabilities 6,336 460
Other (205) -
41,074 9,819

Less increase in working capital fram nor-cash acquisition 585 -
Less decrease (increase) in capital costs payable 5,442 (3,527
Add increase in distributions payable (7,979) -
Net change in non-cash working capital from operations $ 39,122 S 6,292

The following cash payments have been included in.the determination of earnings:

2004 2003
Interest paid $ 19,809 S 22,065
Income taxes paid $ 11,436 $ 9,113
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18. UNIT BASED COMPENSATION

AltaGas implemented a unit based compensation plan during 2004 which awards phantom units to certain
employees. The phantom units have value if the Trust declares distributions during the vesting period. The
value is further based on the level of the distributions declared and the trading price of the Trusts” units. The
units vest on a graded vesting schedule. Total compensation expense recognized in 2004 under this plan was
$1.1 million (2003 - nil).

Vesting date Number of phantom units
2005 16,295
2008 16,295
2007 213,720

246,310

18. PENSION PLANS AND RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Substantially all full-time employees of the Trust’s natural gas distribution subsidiary, AltaGas Utilities Inc.,
are members of one of two defined benefit non-contributory pension plans. AltaGas Utilities Inc. also has
plans that provide other post-retirement benefits such as life insurance and health care. The other benefit

plans are not funded.

Plan contributions in 2004 and 2003 were made in accordance with 2002 reports on the actuarial
valuation for funding purposes. The next actuarial valuations for funding purposes must be no later than
September 30, 2005.

2004 20013
Pension Other Pension Cither
Plans Benefit Plans Plans Renafit Plans
Accrued benefit obligation
Balance, beginning of year $ 11,656 $ 1,020 $ 9,300 $ 814
Experience loss 496 107 1,133 115
Current service cost 778 47 668 40
Interest cost 776 66 684 39
Benefits paid (36) (16) {129) 8)
Balance, end of year 13,670 1,224 11,656 1,020
Plan assets
Fair value, beginning of year 9,792 ~ 8,241 -
Actual return on plan assets 1,596 ~ 871 -
Employer contributions 1,432 16 809 8
Benefits paid (36) (16) (1299 {8)
Fair value, end of year 12,784 ~ 9,792 -
Funding deficit (886) (1,224) {1.864) {1,020
Unamortized transitional obligation 419 331 467 361
Unamortized past service costs 138 - 171 -
Unamortized net actuarial loss 1,060 345 1,491 247
Accrued benefit asset (liability) $ 731 $ (548) 5 263 S 412}
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All of the individual plans included in the pension plans have funding deficits. The Salaried Employees’
Pension Plan has a deficit of $0.7 million (2003 - $1.3 million); the Bargaining Unit Pension Plan has a
deficit of $0.2 million (2003 - $0.6 million).

2004 200K

Pension Plan Cther Pengion Plan Ciher
Benefits Benefit Plans Bengsfits Benefit Plans

Significant actuarial assumptions used

as at December 31 v

Discount rate (percent) 6.0 6.0 6.25 6.25
Expected longterm rate of return

on plan assets (percent] 6.75 n/a 6.73 n/a
Rate of compensation increase (percent} 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00
Average remaining service life of

" active employees [years) 14 16 14 16
Net benefit plan expense for the year
Current service cost and expenses $ 778 $ 47 S 668 S 4()
Interest cost 776 66 634 39
Actual return on plan assets (1,595) - 871 -
Actuarial losses 496 107 1,148 116
Costs arising in the period 455 220 1,626 215
Differences between costs arising in the
period and costs recognized in the period
in respect of:

Return on plan assets 902 - 232 ~

Plan amendments 33 - 33 -

Actuarial gains (472) (98) {1,143 (112}

Transitional obligations 48 30 48 30
Net periodic benefit plan costs recognized § 966 $ 152 $ 796 $ 133

The proportion of pension plan assets invested by type is as follows:

Canadian equity securities 39%
Foreign equity securities 25
Debt securities 35
Cash 1
100%
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20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

On September 4, 2003 the Trust loaned $29.0 million to Taylor, The loan was interest bearing at prime plus
one percent and was repaid on October 17, 2003, Interest earned by AltaGas on the loan was $0.2 million with
fees of $0.4 million. On each of October 17, 2003 and August 19, 2004 the Trust purchased 1.6 million units
of Taylor from Taylor’s treasury, AltaGas paid $8.7 million and $10.6 million respectively for the investments,

On June 30, 2004 L.O.P. Inc. {LOP), an equity accounted investee, repaid the $2.3 million loan
extended to it by the Trust. At the same time, the Trust sold its investment in LOP to LOP’s majority
shareholder for proceeds of $0.5 million. During 2003 AltaGas purchased maintenance services totaling $0.1
million from LOP. These transactions have been recorded at their exchange amounts.

The Trust pays rent under a lease for office space to 2013761 Ontario Inc. which is owned by an
employee. Payments of $21 thousand were made in 2004, The five year lease expires in 2007 and is
renewable at the option of AltaGas for another five years.

21. JOINT VENTURES

The Trust’s proportionate interest in its partnership and joint venture arrangements is summarized as follows:

2004 2003
Proportionate share of operating income
Revenue $ 194,609 $ 162,649
Expenses 156,123 117.030

$ 38,486 $ 45,619

Proportionate share of net assets

Current assets $ 13,393 by 17,027
Capital assets _ 54,119 33,076
Energy services arrangements and contracts 92,871 98,666
Investments and other assets 489 {14
Current liabilities (17,286) {18,156}

$ 143,586 S 150,727

Proportionate share of cash flows

Dperating activities $ 49,075 $ 54,961
Investing activities (2,333) {S,140)
Financing activities (46,741) {49.821)

$ 1 $ -
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22. SEGMENTED INFORMATION

AltaGas is a midstream energy trust with a portfolio of assets and services used to move energy from the

source to the end user. Transactions between the reporting segments are recorded at fair value. The Trust has

three reportable segments:

Gathering and Processing — natural gas gathering and processing, natural gas transmission, and ethane

and natural gas liquids extraction.

Energy Services — power services, gas services and oil and natural gas production.

Natural Gas Distribution - natural gas distribution to end users and related services.

Gathering and Energy Natural Gas Intersegment
December 31, 2004 Processing Services Distribution Elimination Total
Revenue $ 218,862 $ 630,412 $ 124,645 $ {114,700} $ 859,219
Cost of sales (53,985) (570,485) {93,991) 109,012 (609,449)
Operating and
administrative expenses (93,273) (12,359) {16,449) 5,688 (116,393)
Amortization (26,195) (9,294) (6,337) - (41,826)
Operating income $ 45,409 $ 38274 $ 7,868 $ - $ 91,551
Net additions to:
Capital assets $ 76,894 $ 15117 $ 9,605 $ - $ 101,616
Energy services
arrangements, contracts
and relationships $ - § 18,398 $ - - § 18,398
Longterm investments
and other assets $ 9,401 $ - $ 848 $ - $ 10,249
Goodwill $ 18,860 $ - § - 8 - $ 18,860
Segment assets $ 784,837 $ 165,998 $ 157,761 $ - $1,108,596
Energy Nawursl Gas nterse
Oecemier 31. 2003 g ] Services Distribution £ It Totat
Ravenue S 169,224 $ 510,797 § 129,434 5 {98,851 $ 710,604
Cost of sales (28,807} (461,492} (98,866} 98,418 {490,747}
Operating and
administrative expenses {74,598} {8,189 {15,637} 433 (97,991)
Amortization {23,555} {8,513} {6,244} - (38,312}
Operating income $ 42,264 $ 32,603 $ 3,687 S - $ 83,3554
Net additions to:
Capital assets S 33,316 § 2,514 S 16,796 ) - § 352626
Energy services
arrangements, contracts
and relationships $ - $ 23 $ - $ - $ 25
Longterm investments
and other assets §  1R.183 § ~ $ 56 S - $ 18,241
Goodwill S 18E60 S - $ - 3 - $ 18,860
Segment, assets S 614401 § 168,739 $§ 139,100 - S 919,260
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23. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current financial statement presentation.

24, SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
On February 7, 2005 the Trust sold 1.4 million units of its investment in Taylor for net proceeds of

$12.8 million realizing a pre-tax gain of approximately $5.0 million. The sale reduces AltaGas® ownership
in Taylor to 4.0 million units or 14.0 percent.
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10 Year Review - Financial {tnformation

{$ millions except per unit armounts) 2004 2003 2002
OPERATIONS
Revenue
Gathering, Processing and Energy Services - - -
Gathering and Processing 218.9 169.2 106.1
Energy Services 630.4 510.8 355.9
Natural Gas Distribution 124.6 129.4 94.3
Intersegment elimination (114.7) {98.8) {63.6)
Total revenue 859.2 710.6 4927
Cost of sales 609.4 480.7 322.8
Net revenue” 249.8 2199 169.9
Operating and administrative 116.4 98.0 7351
EBTDAY 133.4 121.9 94.8
Amortization 41.8 38.3 33.8
Interest expense 21.2 22.1 18.1
Income taxes 4.6 23.2 13.5
Net income 65.8 38.3 29.4
Net income per basic unit $ 133 0.84 S 070
EBITDA per basic unit $ 270 2.638 § 224
Distribution/dividend per unit $§ 131 0.38 S 0.28
FUNDS BENERATED FROM OPERATIONST
From continuing operations 108.6 90.2 70.8
Per hasic unit $ 220 1.98 $ 1.67
UNIT DATA (millions)
Units outstanding at year end 53.2 45.7 43.2
Units outstanding for the year (basic) 49.4 45.5 423
AGSETS
Current assets 194.8 96.2 108.0
Capital assets 746.7 677.3 663.4
Goodwill 18.9 18.9 18.9
Future income taxes 0.2 0.2 0.2
Energy services arrangements and contracts 113.1 101.0 107.0
Investments and other assets 349 25.1 7.4
1,108.6 919.3 904.9
LIABILITIES AND UNITHOLDERS EQUITY
Current fiabilities 301.3 87.1 135.1
Operating loans 251.5 3924 368.9
Deferred revenue and other 16.1 14.0 12.9
Future and deferred income taxes 56.2 62.5 49.4
Unitholders’ equity 483.5 363.3 338.6
1,108.6 919.3 9049

(1) Non-GAAP financial measure. See discussion on page 2§

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current financial presentation

Prior periods have been restated for the impacts of the adoption of CICA Handbook guidance on accounting for

asset retirement obligations
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2001 2000 19848 1888 1857 1896 18335
448.1 469.7 195.9 94.8 523 17.5 8.0
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
120.6 98.0 66.0 273 N/A N/A N/A
(78.9} (61.0) (.0 - N/A N/A N/A
489.8 506.7 2578 122.1 $2.3 173 8.0
3548 390.4 171.9 74.3 30.1 73 2.0
135.0 116.3 85.9 478 222 102 6.0
65.1 59.3 43.1 237 12.0 6.0 2.8
69.9 57.0 423 24.1 102 4.2 3.2

25.6 19.4 (4.5 70 2.6 1.3 0.5

15.9 12.2 10.6 5.5 1.2 0.5 -
9.2 7.8 6.4 43 24 1.1 1.0
19.2 17.6 11.3 7.2 46 1.7 1.5

S 030 0.46 $ 043 S 0.39 0.27 S 0.16 S 027
$ 183 150 $ 162 $ 13 0.60 $ 038 S 0.58
§ 018 - $ - $ - - $ - $ -
50.2 40,5 28.6 16.1 8.9 4.8 2.6
$ 131 1.06 § 108 § 088 0.44 $ 043 $ 047
38.3 38.2 37.8 18.9 18.0 16.9 9.4
38.2 38.1 26.4 18.4 17.0 1.2 5.5
79.2 1183 49.3 34.5 9.7 6.0 16
521.0 453.0 376.9 280.5 71.2 17.4 9.9
0.8 - - - - - -
0.2 0.2 - - - - -
112.2 - - - - - -
7.7 9.6 10.3 12.1 47 3.4 0.2

7211 581.1 436.5 3271 856 5.8 11.7
1453 92.5 40.1 28.6 1.5 5.3 2.5
283.9 216.9 151.9 160.3 30.2 18.9 -
114 9.4 7.2 42 3.2 4.0 0.3
18.4 11.7 6.5 4.9 4.8 2.7 0.6
261.9 250.6 230.8 129.1 35.9 259 8.3
7211 S 436.5 3271 85.6 56.8 %
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10 Year Review - Operating Summary

2004 2003 2002
RATIOS (percent)
Return on average equity 15.7 10.9 9.8
Return on average invested capital 11.6 111 9.3
Debt as a percent of total capitalization 42.6 322 553
OPERATING RESULTS
Gathering and Processing
Field gathering and processing
Processing capacity (gross Mmcf/d) (7 9213 361 842
Processed throughput (gross Mmcf/d) (2 558 523 532
Processed throughput {gross average annual Mmcf/d) 560 320 492
Capacity utilization (percent) ¥/ 61 61 63
Average working interest (percent) (%) 90 50 38
Extraction
Infet capacity (Mmcf/d] (#/ 539 348 349
Production (Bbls,/d) 3/ 13,436 EAYA 3,399
Transmission volumes (Mmcf/d) /(7 432 403 106
Energy Services
Volume of power sold [thousands of MWh) (3/ 3,481 3.266 2,669
Price received on the sale of power ($/MWh) 3/ 48.77 7.56 41,27
Alberta Power Paal prices ($/Mwh) {3/ 54.54 62.98 42,85
Natura! gas distribution (/68
Volume of natural gas distributed
Sales (Bcf) 14 14 14
Transportation (Bcf) 11 10 8
Number of customners 7/ 60,430 39,543 58,499
Degree day variance (percent] (6! 2.6 6.9 7.8

() As at December 31
(2} Fourth quarter average
3} Annual average

(4} Average for fourth quarter except for 1998 which included December only. Operation of AltaGas' first transmission pipeline

commenced in December 1998

{5} AltaGas purchased 100 percent of the outstanding common shares of AltaGas Utilities on June 30, 1998.

Numbers exclude Inuvik Gas Ltd. and Heritage Gas Ltd.
() Variance from 20 year average — positive variances are favourable
(7). Volumes do not include condensate pipeline volumes
() Excludes Inuvik Gas Ltd. And Heritage Gas Limited operating statistics
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2001 2000 19948 1848 1687 1896 169385
7.3 7.0 6.6 9.0 15.0 12.6 36.4
8.7 8.6 9.4 9.4 12.7 12.8 $9.1

58.5 45.6 39.0 54.7 44.1 40.4 -

768 712 558 494 299 246 49

498 434 371 276 147 129 32

489 418 330 208 131 82 20
65 61 56 56 49 52 65
88 87 89 89 92 96 82

219 211 199 185 35 30 30

2,618 3.369 2,198 956 391 330 375

47 36 26 16 - - -

13 14 13 6 - - -

8 7 3 3 - - -

57,542 56,692 55,636 55,147 - - -

(3.4) 6.5 (1.1 - - - -
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Quarterly Review - Financial Summary

(% millions except per unit amounts) a1 Q2 Q3 G4 Annual
2004
Revenue
Gathering and Processing
Field gathering and processing 26.5 28.4 28.5 21 115.5
Extraction 10.4 10.8 16.9 36.8 74.9
Transmission 7.0 6.4 6.5 6.6 26.5
Cther 1.3 0.8 0.8 1.2 4.1
Intercomponent elimination (0.5) (0.5) (0.6) (0.5) (2.1)
Energy Services 133.4 124.1 124.6 248.3 630.4
Natural Gas Distribution 48.1 20.6 14.0 41.9 124.6
intersegment elimination (32.7) (15.2) (12.2) (54.6) (114.7)
193.5 175.4 $ 1785 $ 3118 $ 8592
Net revenue
Gathering and Processing
Field gathering and processing 26.5 28.4 28.5 321 115.5
Extraction 3.5 3.6 5.5 8.2 20.8
Transmission 7.0 6.4 6.5 6.6 26.5
Other 1.3 0.9 0.8 1.2 4.2
Intercomponent elimination {0.5) (0.5) (0.6) (0.5) (2.1)
Energy Services 9.8 14.6 16.6 18.9 59.9
Natura! Gas Distribution 9.7 6.2 5.1 9.7 30.7
Intersegment efimination (0.1) (0.1) (0.9) (4.6) (5.7)
57.2 59.5 $ 615 $ 716 $ 2498
Dperating income
Gathering and Processing 12.0 7.2 12.1 14.1 45.4
Energy Services 5.3 10.0 11.6 114 38.3
Natural Gas Distribution 3.9 0.4 (0.3) 3.9 7.9
21.2 17.6 $ 234 $ 294 $ 916
Net Income 11.0 11.9 17.1 25.8 65.8
Per basic unit 0.24 0.25 0.33 0.49 1.33
EBITDA 31.2 27.8 33.8 40.6 133.4
Per basic unit 0.68 0.59 0.66 0.77 2,70
Funds gererated from operations 221 24.0 28.6 33.9 108.6
Per basic unit 0.48 0.51 0.55 0.64 2.20
Net additions to capital assets 14.3 6.2 55.3 25.8 101.6
Gathering and Processing 12.2 4.3 377 22.7 76.9
Energy Services 0.3 - 14.6 0.2 151
Natural Gas Distribution 1.8 1.9 3.0 2.9 9.6
Segment assets 917.3 952.6 958.7 1,108.6 1,108.6
Gathering and Processing 629.0 655.8 691.7 784.8 784.8
Energy Services 154.1 166.8 140.3 166.0 166.0
Natural Gas Distribution 134.2 130.0 126.7 157.8 157.8
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Quarterly Review - Financial Summary

i milions except per unit amountes) 31 G2 a3 Q4 Annual
2003
Revenue
BGathening and Processing
Field gathering and processing 243 24.0 257 27.8 101.8
Extraction 12,2 8.6 8.8 10.2 39.8
Transmission 6.2 6.4 6.7 6.7 26.0
Other 0.8 0.8 0.8 1.2 3.6
Intercomponent elimination 0.0 0.5 {0.9) {0.5) {2.0)
Energy Services 149.6 1209 1151 1252 510.8
Natural Gas Distribution 358.3 23.5 12.9 34.7 129.4
Intersegment elimination {47.0} {15.3) {10.2) {26.3) (98.8)
2043 168.4 158.9 § 1790 $ 7106
Net revenue
Gathering and Processing
Fizld gathering and processing 24.3 24.0 287 27.8 101.8
Extraction 3.0 2.3 2.2 3.3 11.0
Transmission 6.2 6.4 6.7 6.7 26.0
Other 0.8 0.8 0.8 1.2 3.6
Intercomponent limination {0.1) (0.5} (0.9) (0.5 (2.0
Erergy Services 9.7 12.5 14.0 135.1 49.3
Natural Gas Distribution 10.6 3.8 4.9 9.3 30.6
Intersegment elimination (0.1) (0.1 (0.1 {0.1) {04
§ 344 $1.2 53.3 $ 610 § 2199
Operating income
Gathering and Processing 7 3.0 10.2 134 42.3
Energy Services 6.0 8.3 9.5 8.8 326
Natural Gas Distribution 5.2 0.3 (0.5} 3.7 8.7
§ 209 17.6 192 % 259 § 836
Net Income 10.2 6.8 9.3 12.0 38.3
Per basic share 0.23 0.18 0.20 (.26 0.84
EBITDA 30.7 27.4 29.1 347 121.
Per basic share 0.68 0.60 0.64 0.76 2.68
Funds generated from operations 218 20,8 211 26.7 90.2
Per basic share 0.48 0.45 (.46 0.58 1.98
Net additions to capitel assets 7.5 4.9 6.3 337 52.6
Gathering and Processing 5.2 33 3.0 217 33.3
Erergy Services 0.8 0.2 0.5 1.0 2.3
Natural Gas Digtribution 1.4 1.4 3.0 11.0 16.8
Segment assets 918.7 381.6 909.4 919.3 919.5
Gathering and Processing 396.2 5847 622.0 614.4 614.4
Energy Services 176.7 171.7 161.4 165.8 165.8
Natural Gas Distribution 145.8 125.2 126.0 139.1 139.1
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Quarterly Review - Operating Summary

a1 a2 Q3 Q4 Annual
2004
Gathering and Processing
Field gathering and processing
Processing capacity (gross Mmcf/d} /901 906 906 913 913
Processed throughput [gross Mmcf/d) 560 563 552 558 558
Capacity utilization (percent) (*/ 62 62 61 61 61
Average working interest (percent) (*/ 87 89 89 90 90
Extraction
Inlet capacity (Mmcf/d) @/ 349 349 539 539 539
Production (Bbis/d) %/ 10,020 9,337 13,054 21,244 13,436
Transmission volumes {(Mmcf/d) /() 396 415 417 432 432
Energy Services
Volume of power sold {thousands of MWh) 863 862 877 879 3,481
Price received on the
sale of power ($/MwWh] 45,78 49.88 49,22 50.17 48.77
Alberta power pool prices ($/Mwh) @ 48.78 60.07 54.35 54.95 54.54
Natural Gas Distribution 5/
Volume of natural gas distributed
Sales (Bcf) ¢ 5.5 2.2 1.5 4.4 13.6
Transportation [Bcf) 3.0 2.6 2.6 2.8 11.0
Customers ) 59,528 59,266 60,048 60,430 60,430
Degree day variance (percent) 3/ 2.0 11.5 24.8 (4.4) 2.6

() At period end
@) Quarter average

B Variance from 20 year average - positive variances are favourable

() Volumes do not include condensate pipeline volumes

(s} Excludes Inuvik Gas Ltd. and Heritage Gas Limited operating statistics
6) Q2 and Q3 financial reswclts and natural gas distributed (Bcf) reflect the normal
lower seasonal demand for narural gas in the Natural Gas Distribution segment
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Qusarterly Review - Operating Summary

31 a2 G3 G4 Annual
2003
Gathering and Processing
Fiald gathering and processing
Processing capacity {gross Mmcf/d} 8§47 838 833 861 861
Processed throughput [gross Mimef/d} 538 510 514 523 523
Capacity utilization (percent) {* 63 61 62 61 61
Average working interest [percent) {/ 88 §8 &3 90 90
Extraction
Infet. capacity (Mmcf/d) ¢/ 349 344 349 349 349
Production (Bbls /) '/ 7.567 7,118 6,428 9,159 7373
Transmission volurnes (Mmoot /d) 246! 319 321 347 403 403
Energy Services
Volume of power sold (thousands of MWh]) 660 861 8§72 373 3,266
Price received on the
sale of power (B/Mwh) 47.26 46.33 49,41 47.10 47.56
Alberta power pool prices {$/MWh] ¢/ 83.85 50.88 €2.39 54.78 62.98
' Natural Gas Distribution {5/
N Volume of natural gas distributed
Sales (Bef) ¢ S.9 2.1 1.3 4.5 13.8
Transpartation {Bef) 1.9 2.2 2.6 3.0 9.7
Customers 58,700 58,671 38,941 59,543 59.543
Degree day variance (percent) 9.2 15.4 (5.9) 3.4 6.9
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DIVIDENDS/DISTRIBUTIONS

On April 29, 2004 the Trust announced that it would commence monthly distributions of $0.15 for each
trust unit and exchangeable unit on June 15, 2004 to holders of trust units and holders of exchangeable
units. Prior to the conversion to a trust AltaGas Services Inc. paid quarterly cash dividends per fully paid
common share and participating share in the capital stock of AltaGas Services Inc. from March 31, 2001,
No dividends were paid on any shares of AltaGas Services Inc. from the date of its inception to the end of
December 2000.

Distribution levels will be reviewed periodically by the Board of Directors giving consideration to the
ongoing sustainable distributable cash flow as impacted by the consolidated net income of the Trust, the
consolidated growth and maintenance capital requirements and the consolidated debt repayment
requirements of the Trust. The Trust targets to pay out substantially all of its ongoing sustainable

distributable cash flow through regular monthly distributions made to unitholders.

The following table summarizes the dividends paid by AltaGas Services Inc.

2004 2003 HO02 20X

First quarter $ 011 S 008 S 0.06 0.03
Second Quarter n/a 0.08 0.06 0.03
Third quarter n/a 0.11 0.08 0.06
Fourth quarter /a 0.11 (.08 0.06
$ 011 $  0.38 §  0.28 0.18

The following table summarizes the monthly cash distributions of the Trust.

Record Date

Payment Date

Distribution per Unit

May 25, 2004 June 15, 2004 $0.15
June 25, 2004 July 15, 2004 $0.15
July 28, 2004 August 16, 2004 $0.15
August 25, 2004 September 15, 2004 $0.15
September 27, 2004 October 15, 2004 $0.15
October 25, 2004 November 15, 2004 $0.15
Novemnber 25, 2004 December 15, 2004 $0.15
December 29, 2004 January 17, 2005 $0.15

Total 2004 cash dividends and distributions were $1.31 per (share) unit.
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